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PART |
Iltem 1. Busines:

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (“WWEI$ an integrated media and entertainment compare/.h@ve been involved in the spi
entertainment business for more than 25 yearshane developed World Wrestling Entertainment inte of the most popular brands in glc
entertainment today. We develop unique and creativeent centered around our talent and preseitedrdive and televised events. At
heart of our success are the athletic and ententin skills and appeal of our WWE Superstars andcousistently innovative and multi-
faceted storylines across our three brands, Ravackbown and ECWAnNchored by these brands, we are able to leverageantent an
talent across virtually all media outlets. Our ligad televised events, consumer products, digitadianand feature film outlets prov
significant cross-promotion and marketing oppottiesithat reinforce our brands while effectivelgehing our fans.

In June 2006, the Board of Directors elettechange WWES fiscal year to a calendar basis beginning witaraar 2007. This change v
intended to simplify communication with sharehokl@nd enable the reporting of our financial resirts timeframe consistent with 1
majority of our media and entertainment peers. futhe change to a calendar year end, we establesheight month transition period fr
May 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006. The red$rdta this time period are referred to throughous tteport as “2006 transition perigd”
“transition 200", “T 200€”, or the“transition perio”. Results have not been restated to reflect the cabfgatwelve month calendar peri



for prior years.

During 2006, we expanded the number of our reptet@egments to better reflect the manner in whidmagement analyzes
performance of our Company. We also reclassifietheother operations among the reportable segnent

Our operations are centered around the following far business segments:
Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te levents, sales of merchandise at these live evevision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feegiéwing our pay-per-view and video on demandyprming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the direct saleWWE produced home videos and magazine publishitrayalties or license fe
related to various WWE themed products such asowj@enes, toys and books.

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisiteRigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and malbihtent.

WWE Films

e Revenues consist of our share of receipts frondisigibution of filmed entertainment featuring dduperstars. Two feature films w
released in 2006 and one film was released in 206 participate in revenues generated under thghdifon of the films through ¢
media after the print and advertising and distidoutcosts incurred by our distributors have beauped and the results have k
reported to us.

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, “WWHE#gfers to World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. ansl subsidiaries, unless the con
otherwise requires. References to “we,” “us,” “oarid the “Companyfefer to WWE and its subsidiaries. World Wrestligtertainment ar
the stylized and highly distinctive World Wrestlifitntertainment scratch logo are two of our traddnarhis Annual Report on Form 10O-
also contains other WWE trademarks and trade namegell as those of other companies. All trademarid trade names appearing in
report are the property of their respective holders

Live and Televised Entertainment
(represents 65%, 70%, 73% and 82% of our net reveres in 2007, T 2006, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005spectively)
Live Events

Our Raw Superstars travel as one touring show vehiteSmackDown and ECW Superstars travel togethar@mbined tour. This gives
flexibility in scheduling that allows us to play merous domestic and international markets.

In 2007, we held 233 live events throughout Northekica, entertaining over one million fans at aarage ticket price of $40.47. We h
many of our live events at major arenas acrosscthentry. In addition to providing the content fourotelevision and pay-pesiew
programming, these events provide us with a read-thissessment of the popularity of our storylimescharacters.

In 2007, we held 75 live events internationallygaieing approximately 575,000 fans at an averagettiorice of $79.60. These events v
spread over several successful international tmatading ourSurvivor Seriegour in Europe, ouWWE Livetour in Portugal and Ireland &
our SmackDown SummerSldaur in Spain and France.

Live events net revenues were $99.3 million, $5@ifion, $75.0 million and $78.7 million, represamg 20%, 20%, 19% and 22% of tc
net revenues in 2007, transition 2006, fiscal 2@0®@, fiscal 2005, respectively.

Venue Merchandise

Our venue merchandise business consists of theofakrious WWIE-branded products at our live events, such-shirts, caps and ott



novelty items, which feature our Superstars andlar logo. Nearly all of these products are desighgdour inhouse creative staff a
manufactured by third parties.

Venue merchandise net revenues were $19.1 milfit@,1 million, $14.7 million and $12.8 million, negsenting 4%, 5%, 4% and 3%
total net revenues in 2007, transition 2006, fi&6, and fiscal 2005, respectively.

Television Programming

Relying on our itouse production capabilities at our productiorilitgcwe produce four television shows, consistofgs hours of origini
domestic programming each week. Our domestic cabté broadcast programs consist of “Monday Night Ra&&ECW”, “ Friday Nigh
SmackDown” and “A.M. Raw.” Starting in January 200& began producing these programs in ldgfinition (HD). The ability to broadc:
our programs in HD quality allows our ‘larger-thlfie: Superstars to be showcased in a new and excitizg Wa generate revenue from
programming through television rights fees and bg tale of cable advertising in Canada. We belignee popularity of our televisic
programming drives the success of our other busggedranslating into increased live event atteoglapay-periew buys and merchand
sales.

Under our agreement with NBC Universal, whathrrently includes “Monday Night Raw” and the weal program “A.M. Raw”we
receive a rights fee totaling approximately $0.Tian per week. “Monday Night Raw” is a twoeur primetime program that is broadcast
on USA Network and is consistently one of the meatched regularly scheduled programs on cableitétev As part of this agreement, k
also airs in replays on Telemundo and mun2.

Our relationship with NBC Universal expandedMay 2006 with the re-launch &CW: Extreme Championship Wrestlingn the SCI F
Channel.

The two-hour “Friday Night SmackDowilirs on the CW Network in primetime on Fridays amdonsistently one of the highest r¢
programs on CW and a top rated show among malek/1@#hd males 184 on Friday nights. On January 31, 2008, we ancedirthat w
would conclude our partnership with the CW Netwafter the conclusion of the 2007/2008 televisioassa. Subsequently, in February 2|
we announced that SmackDown would be movinglydetworkT\for the start of the 2008/2009 television season.

Internationally, our programming is distributed mmore than 110 countries and 18 different langualyfés. continue to expand c
distribution and have secured new television distibn agreements on terrestrial, cable and satedlatforms throughout the Middle E:
Africa, Asia, and South America. We believe ouetdion distribution is key to our internationaksess and use our programming to suj
tours and related live event merchandise salesedsawfurthering our licensing program.
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Television rights fee net revenues were $92.4 oml$58.7 million, $81.5 million and $78.0 milliorepresenting 19%, 22%, 20% and :
of total net revenues in 2007, transition 20062006 and fiscal 2005, respectively.

Advertising

We no longer sell advertising during our prograngnim the United States; however we continue to igi®sponsorships domestically
meet the needs of our advertisers. Through thesesspships, we offer advertisers a full range af gnemotional vehicles, including interi
and print advertising, arena signage, on-air anoenents and pay-peiew sponsorship. We continue to sell advertisimgur programs
Canada.

Advertising and sponsorship net revenues were $fllibn, $4.5 million, $22.6 million and $43.7 nmidin, representing 1%, 2%, 6% ¢
12% of total net revenues in 2007, transition 20i36al 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively.

Pay-Per-View Programming

We have been pioneers in both the produciwh promotion of pay-per-view events since out fi@y-per-view eveniWrestleMania, in
1985. At each pay-periew event, our storylines typically culminate drange direction. We intensively market and prontléestorylines thi
are associated with upcoming pay-per-view evemtsutgh our television shows, internet sites and raiaga Some of our international pay-per-
view partners include SKY in the United Kingdomgmiere in Germany, SKY Perfect TV! in Japan, SKali# in Italy and Main Event
Australia.

We produced 15 domestic pay-p@w programs in 2007 as compared to 11 prograntiseir2006 transition period. Based on the schi
of our events, our most popular and successful @nexent,WrestleMania, did not occur during the 2006 transition peri@iir suggeste
domestic retail price for all pay-per-view evemt2007 was $39.95, with the exceptiorMdfestleManiawhich had a suggested domestic r
price of $49.95. Consistent with industry practjogs share the revenues with cable systems antlitsgpeoviders such as DirecTV, and |
service fees to INDEMAND and TV}



Pay-periew net revenues were $94.3 million, $53.4 mil|i$84.8 million and $85.5 million, representing 1920%, 24% and 23% of to
net revenues in 2007, T 2006, fiscal 2006 and lf2@85, respectively.

WWE 24/7

WWE 24/7 On Demand is a Subscription Video @amand (SVOD) service that offers highly-rated dmdtselling classic televisic
shows, pay-peview events, specials and original programming. Mafsthis material is drawn from WWE's extensiveled library an
includes other leading wrestling brands, which wetmwl the content of, such as WCW, WCCW, ECW aWiiA WWE 24/7 subscribers ha
access to approximately 40 hours of content eaafthmo

WWE 24/7 On Demand is currently distributed withdf4he top 15 cable television systems in the éyumaking WWE 24/7 available
more than 80 percent of VOD enabled subscribergoMsorth American distributors currently includ€omcast Communications, C
Communications, Charter Communications, Cablevisiod Verizon Communications, among others. Intéwnatly, WWE 24/7 On Dema
is available in Japan, Italy, India and Israel.

WWE 24/7 net revenues were $4.9 million in 2007.0%aillion in transition 2006, $1.1 million in fiat 2006 and less than $0.1 millior
fiscal 2005, the initial year of operation.

Consumer Products
(represents 24%, 22%, 22% and 15% of our net reveres in 2007, T 2006, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005spectively)
Licensing

We have established a worldwide licensing prograingiour World Wrestling Entertainment marks andoks copyrighted works a
characters on a large variety of retail produetsluding toys, video games, apparel and books.ddtlyr, we maintain licenses with more t
100 licensees worldwide that provide products fde st major retailers. In all of our licensing egments, we retain creative approval ove
design, packaging, advertising and promotional madtassociated with these products to maintain distinctive style and quality of ¢
intellectual property and brand.

Videogames and toys represent important comporérasr licensing program by generating substaméaénues through our licenses v
THQ/Jakks Pacific, LLC ("THQ/Jakks") and Jakks Facilnc. ("Jakks"), respectively. We are currenithywolved in litigation with, amor
others, THQ/Jakks and Jakks. During the resoludiathis litigation we plan to continue to fulfillus obligations under these licenses and e
Jakks and THQ to do likewise. Additional informatioegarding this litigation is available in Note 1d Notes to Consolidated Finan
Statements. On February 13, 2008 we announced prebemsive, multiear licensing agreement, effective as of Janu@iy) 2naming Matte
Inc. as WWE's master toy licensee covering all gldbrritories upon the expiration of our curremt ticense with Jakks.

We have a book publishing licensing agreement @ithon & Schuster which allows us the ability to [t original content in a variety
genres, including fiction, histories, how-to, anatabiographies. During 2007 we published three hewoks, includingThe Condemnedr
adaptation of the WWE Films production. We also lighied The Hardcore Diariesby Mick Foley, his third autobiography, anBatiste
Unleashedyy Dave Batista.

Music is an integral part of the entertainmerperience surrounding WWE's live events, televisprograms and pay-perews. Wk
compose and record most of our music, including Superstar entrance themes, in our recording stuiaddition to our own compos
music, we license music performed by popular artist

Licensing net revenues, including musiere $47.1 million, $14.7 million, $32.2 million @$20.9 million, representing 10%, 6%, 8%
6% of total net revenues in 2007, transition 2036al 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively.

Home Videc

In 2007, we released 33 new home video titles aibed approximately 4.0 million DVD units, inclugj catalog titles. Further expans
of distribution and more widespread retail markgtsupport also helped to drive domestic sales. rBeggg in November 2006, Gen
Products, LLC became our exclusive domestic distabof home videosOutside the United States, our new releases aradogatitles ar
distributed through licensees.

Home video net revenues were $53.7 million, $35il5am, $42.6 million and $20.1 million, represemgi 11%, 13%, 11% and 6% of tc
net revenues in 2007, transition 2006, fiscal 280é fiscal 2005, respectivel



Magazine Publishin

In the 2006 transition period, we converted publication of two magazineRawand SmackDown into one flagship publicatioy/WE
Magazine. This redesigned publication gives fans a looRVWE talent in a lifestyle setting including depth features, photos, exclus
interviews and backstage access. WWE SuperstarBiaad provide fans with tips on fitness, fashigagdgets and more.

Magazine publishing net revenues were $16.5 mill§h5 million, $11.1 million and $12.2 million,presenting 3% of total net revenue
2007, transition 2006, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005.

Digital Media
(represents 7%, 8%, 5% and 3% of our net revenuesi2007, T 2006, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respreely)
WWE.com

Through our broadband network and sites, Wiy#Rerates revenue from the sale of online advegtiscommerce, and the distribution
wireless content. Our primary website, WWE.conraated nearly 18 million monthly unique users waille and generated an average c
million streams per month in 2007, according to @ura, Inc. We utilize the internet to promote dwands, to provide content, to entertain
to market and distribute our products.

Our portfolio of promotional, ad-supporteddatnansactional videcontent is a mix of archival footage, breaking nestgries, origin:
programs and live broadcasts. WWE.com updatesfitsmation as events happen on a global basis.

We have continued to build upon our wireless faatdsy developing a mobile content management gsyste we entered into relationst
with several third party partners to produce, diste, bill, and directly sell mobile content. Toopision this new outlet, we produce sev
pieces of made-for-mobile video offerings. Domesdtic we have a multiear agreement with AT&T Wireless to provide exalasconten:
including videos and ring tones.

WWE.com net revenues were $16.2 million, $7.3 oil]i $9.7 million and $7.8 million, representing 3386, 2% and 2% of total r
revenues in 2007, transition 2006, fiscal 2006 fiswhl 2005, respectively.
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WWEShop

WWEShop is our eemmerce storefront. The number of orders proceBs@dased to approximately 329,100 in 2007 as ewatp t(
244,000 for the 2006 transition period. Categofgrifigs continued to expand as did the sale ofuskot WWEShop packages.

WWEShop net revenues were $18.6 million, $13.4iom)l$12.1 million and $4.5 million representing 4%86, 3% and 1% of total r
revenues in 2007, transition 2006, fiscal 2006 fesswhl 2005, respectively.

WWE Films

We established WWE Films to explore options in &bnentertainment in order to promote our Superstagscapitalize on our intellecti
property and fan base. We have released threeréefitms, See No Evil, The Marineand The CondemnedSee No Evil a horror film the
featured WWE Superstar Kane and was distributedLiopsgate, was released domestically in theaterdlay 2006. The Marine, ar
action/adventure film that starred WWE SuperstdimJ@ena, was distributed by Twentieth Century Femdg was released domestically
theaters in October 2006. Our third feature filthe Condemnegdstarring Stone Cold Steve Austin and distribligd.ionsgate, was releas
domestically in April 2007. During 2007, we recodden asset impairment of $15.7 million relateddo @vised expectations for the worldw
performance oThe CondemnedAs of December 31, 2007, we have approximately.$nillion in capitalized feature film producti@sset:
We do not participate in revenues associated Witise film projects until the print and advertisgsasts and distribution expenses incurre
our distributors have been recouped and the rebakis been reported back to us. Approximately $h6llon in film revenues have be
recorded, all in 2007.

International

Revenues generated outside of North America wepeoajpmately $119.3 million for 2007, $60.4 million T2006, $97.7 million in fisc.
2006 and $87.6 million in fiscal 2005. Revenuesegated from international sources accounted forapmately 25% of total revenu
generated in 2007, 23% in T 2006, and 24% in e&flsaal 2006 and fiscal 2005.

Creative Development and Production



Headed by our Chairman, Vincent K. McMahon, ourtike team develops compelling characters and vgeinvam into dynamic storylin
that combine physical and emotional elements. 8t@y are usually played out in the wrestling ramgl unfold on our weekly television shc
and on our website, and culminate or change dinectiiring our pay-per-view events.

Our results are due primarily to the popularityoof Superstars. We currently have exclusive cotgraith approximately 170 Supersti
ranging from developmental contracts to my#ar guaranteed contracts with established Supgrsbur Superstars are highly trained
motivated independent contractors whose compemségitied to the revenue that they help us geneRdpular Superstars include Triple
John Cena, Batista, Shawn Michaels, UndertakeRaydMysterio. We own the rights to substantiallycdilour characters, and we exclusiv
license the rights we do not own through agreemwitts our Superstars. We continually seek to idgntiecruit and develop additional tal
for our business. In this regard, we have an agaremt with a wrestling development camp, Florida@pionship Wrestling, to allow nev
identified talent the opportunity to perform fooards and refine their skills.

Competition

While we believe that we have a loyal fan base,ethiertainment industry is highly competitive andbject to fluctuations in populari
which are not easy to predict. For our live, ted&n, pay-periew and movie audiences, we face competition fppofessional and colle
sports as well as from other forms of live, filmadd televised entertainment and other leisure iieBv We compete with entertainm
companies, professional and college sports leagmels other makers of branded apparel and mercharfidis¢he sale of our brand
merchandise. As we continue to expand into thelhigbmpetitive internet market we face increasenhgetition from websites offering p:
and free web-based and wireless content. Many commpavith whom we compete have greater financedueces than we do.
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Trademarks and Copyrights

Intellectual property is material to all aspectsoof operations, and we expend substantial costeffiodt in an attempt to maintain &
protect our intellectual property and to maintaimpliance vis-a-vis other partiesitellectual property. We have a large portfolioregistere
and unregistered trademarks and service marks winlddand maintain a large catalog of copyrightedkspincluding copyrights in o
television programming, music, photographs, bookagazines and apparel art. A principal focus of effwrts is to protect the intellecti
property relating to our originally created chaeastportrayed by our performers, which encompassages, likenesses, names and ¢
identifying indicia of these characters. We alsoncavlarge number of internet website domain nanmesaperate a network of develog
content-based sites, which facilitate and contgliatthe exploitation of our intellectual propenygridwide.

We vigorously seek to enforce our intellectual iy rights by, among other things, searching thernet to ascertain unauthorized us
our intellectual property, seizing goods that featunauthorized use of our intellectual propertgt aeeking restraining orders and/or dam
in court against individuals or entities infringingr intellectual property rights. Our failure tortail piracy, infringement or other unauthori
use of our intellectual property rights effectivety our infringement of other@tellectual property rights, could adversely affear operatin
results.

Employees

As of December 2007 we had 570 employeess fieadcount excludes our Superstars, who are indepe contractors. Our imeust
production staff is supplemented with contract perel for our television production. We believettbar relationships with our employees
generally satisfactory. None of our employees epeasented by a union.

Regulation
Live Events

In various states in the United States and sonedoijurisdictions, athletic commissions and otiygplicable regulatory agencies requir
to obtain licenses for promoters, medical cleararez@/or other permits or licenses for performed/a permits for events in order for us
promote and conduct our live events. In the evieat tve fail to comply with the regulations of afarlar jurisdiction, we may be prohibit
from promoting and conducting our live events iattjurisdiction. The inability to present our liegents over an extended period of time «
a number of jurisdictions could lead to a declime¢hie various revenue streams generated from weielents, which could adversely affect
operating results.

Television Programming

The production of television programming by indegemt producers is not directly regulated by theefalor state governments, but
marketplace for television programming in the Udittates and internationally is substantially aéfddoy government regulations applici
to, as well as social and political influences mhevision stations, television networks and catrld satellite television systems and chan
We voluntarily designate the suitability of eachoof television shows using standard industry gatirsuch as PG (L,V) or TV14. A numbe



governmental and privatgector initiatives relating to the content of megliagramming have been announced. Changes in goeetal polic'
and private-sector perceptions could further retstiir program content and adversely affect ouelkewef viewership and operating results.

Available Information

Copies of our Annual Reports on Form 10-Ka@erly Reports on Form 10-Q, current reports om8-K, and any amendments to th
reports, are available free of charge on our welaihttp://corporate.wwe.coas soon as reasonably practicable after such seaartiiled witl
the Securities and Exchange Commission. None ofrtfttgmation on any of our websites is part of tAisnual Report on Form 1K: In
addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Gdgusiness Conduct and charters of our Audit Catbesn and Compensation Commit
are also available on our website. A copy of anyhese documents will be mailed to any stockholgern request to us at World Wrestl
Entertainment, Inc., 1241 East Main Street, StahfGT 06902, Attn: Investor Relations Department.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are inherent risks and uncertainties assatiaith our business that could adversely affectaperating performance and finan
condition. Set forth below are descriptions of thdsks and uncertainties that we currently believiee material, but the risks and uncertail
described below are not the only risks and uncaita that could affect our business. See the dion under Cautionary Statement |
Purposes of the “Safe Harbor” Provisions of thesdtg Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995” itein 7, Managemerd’Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of GgiEms, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our failure to maintain or renew key agreements cold adversely affect our ability to distribute televsion and pay-perview
programming.

Our television programming is distributed timpadcast and cable networks, and our pay-per-pi@gramming is distributed by pay-per-
view providers. Because our revenues are generalieectly and indirectly, from the distribution ajur televised and pay-perew
programming, any failure to maintain or renew agements with these distributors or the failure hef tlistributors to continue to prov
services to us could adversely affect our operatesylts. We are regularly in negotiations relatingsubstantial agreements covering
distribution of our cable, broadcast and/or pay~pew television by carriers located in the Unitedt8s or abroad. As an example, on Jar
31, 2008, we announced that we would conclude attnprship with the CW Network which altSmackDown”after the end of the 2007/2(
television season. In February 2008, we annourtedSmackDown would be moving kyNetworkTV.

Our failure to continue to develop creative and ergrtaining programs and events would likely lead ta decline in the popularity o
our brand of entertainment.

The creation, marketing and distribution of dive and televised entertainment, including pay-perview events, is at the core of
business and is critical to our ability to genenseenues across our media platforms and produtgteuOur failure to continue to cre
popular live events and televised programming wdildely lead to a decline in our television ratingsd attendance at our live events, w
would adversely affect our operating results.

Our failure to retain or continue to recruit key performers could lead to a decline in the appeal ofur storylines and the popularity
of our brand of entertainment.

Our success depends, in large part, upon ouryabdlitecruit, train and retain athletic performenso have the physical presence, ac
ability and charisma to portray characters in e events and televised programming. We cannairas®u that we will be able to continue
identify, train and retain these performers infileire. Additionally, we cannot assure you thatwik be able to retain our current perform
during the terms of their contracts or when theintcacts expire. Our failure to attract and retadg performers, or a serious or untimely in
to, or the death of, or unexpected or premature @wsretirement for any reason of any of our keyfqyeners, could lead to a decline in
appeal of our storylines and the popularity of brand of entertainment, which could adversely affer operating results.

The loss of the creative services of Vincent K. Mclhon could adversely affect our ability to create ppular characters and creative
storylines.

For the foreseeable future, we will depend heamilythe vision and services of Vincent K. McMahamatdition to serving as Chairmar
our board of directors, Mr. McMahon leads the dueateam that develops the storylines and the cienrs for our televised programming .
live events. Mr. McMahon is also an important membkthe cast of performers. The loss of Mr. McMahdue to unexpected retirem
disability or death or other unexpected terminafmmany reason could have a material adverse teffeour ability to create popular charac
and creative storylines, which could adverselyciféair operating results.

A decline in general economic conditions could advgely affect our business.



Our operations are affected by general ecémoonditions, which may affect consumed#sposable income. The demand for entertain
and leisure activities tends to be highly sensitivéhe level of consumersiisposable income. A decline in general economiditmns couli
reduce the level of discretionary income that aursfand potential fans have to spend on our livetalevised entertainment and const
products, which could adversely affect our revenues

A decline in the popularity of our brand of sportsentertainment, including as a result of changes ithe social and political climate
could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by consumer tastegarsitainment trends, which are unpredictable aibjest to change and may be affe:
by changes in the social and political climate. Programming is created to evoke a passionate msgpivom our fans. A change in our fans’
tastes or a material change in the perceptionsiobosiness partners, including our distributord Brensees, whether as a result of the s
and political climate or otherwise, could adversaffgct our operating results.

Changes in the regulatory atmosphere and related prate-sector initiatives could adversely affect oubusiness.

While the production of television programming ngiépendent producers is not directly regulatechbyfeéderal or state governments in
United States, the marketplace for television peiogning in the United States is affected signifigaby government regulations applicable
as well as social and political influences on,\ili®n stations, television networks and cable saigtllite television systems and channels
voluntarily designate the suitability of each ofrdelevision shows using standard industry ratirsggh as PG (L,V) or TV14. A number
domestic and foreign governmental and privagetor initiatives relating to the content of megiagramming have been announced in re
years. Changes in these governmental policies Andt¢-sector perceptions could further restrict our paogicontent and adversely affect
levels of viewership and operating results.

The markets in which we operate are highly competite, rapidly changing and increasingly fragmentedand we may not be able t
compete effectively, especially against competitorgith greater financial resources or marketplace pesence.

For our live, television and pay-péew audiences, we face competition from professli@md college sports, as well as from other foof
live and televised entertainment and other leisut&vities in a rapidly changing and increasingginented marketplace. The manner in w
audio/video content is distributed and viewed iastantly changing, and while we attempt to distiebaur content across all platforms,
failure to continue to do so effectively could athady affect our operating results. For the sal®wf consumer products, we compete
entertainment companies, professional and collpgesleagues and other makers of branded appadeharchandise. Many of the compa
with whom we compete have greater financial resggitban we do.

Our failure to compete effectively could result ansignificant loss of viewers, venues, distributidmannels or performers and fe
entertainment and advertising dollars spent orfaun of sports entertainment, any of which couldexdely affect our operating results.

We face uncertainties associated with internationainarkets.

Our production of live events overseas subject® tise risks involved in foreign travel and locegulations, including regulations requir
us to obtain visas for our performers. In additithre licensing of our television and consumer potslin international markets exposes
some degree of currency risk. All international r@piens are subject to political instability inhetén varying degrees in those markets. T
risks could adversely affect our operating resaitd impair our ability to pursue our business stiatas it relates to international markets.

We may be prohibited from promoting and conductingour live events if we do not comply with applicableegulations.

In the United States and some foreign jurisdicticatbletic commissions and other applicable regwjatigencies require us to obt
licenses for promoters, medical clearances andtar@ermits or licenses for performers and/or psrifior events in order for us to prom
and conduct our live events. In the event that aikté comply with the regulations of a particujarisdiction, we may be prohibited frc
promoting and conducting our live events in thatsgiction. The inability to present our live everdver an extended period of time or
number of jurisdictions could lead to a declinghie various revenue streams generated from ouelreats, which could adversely affect
operating results.

Because we depend upon our intellectual property ghts, our inability to protect those rights or our infringement of others’
intellectual property rights could adversely affectour business.

Our inability to protect our large portfolio of ttamarks, service marks, copyrighted material aratatiers, trade names and o
intellectual property rights from piracy, countetifeg or other unauthorized use could negativelig@tfour business. Intellectual propert
material to all aspects of our operations, and xperd substantial cost and effort in an attemph&intain and protect our intellectual prop:
and to maintain compliance -&-vis other partie’ intellectual property. We have a large portfolioredistered and unregistered trademarks



service marks worldwide and maintain a large catadd copyrighted works, including copyrights to oi#levision programming, mus
photographs, books, magazines and apparel artin&ipal focus of our efforts is to protect the ilgetual property relating to our origina
created characters portrayed by our performersgsiwbhcompasses images, likenesses, names anddethédfying indicia of these characte
We also own a large number of Internet website domames and operate a network of developed, cbhtesed sites, which facilitate ¢
contribute to the exploitation of our intellectymbperty worldwide.

We vigorously seek to enforce our intellectual gy rights by, among other things, searching therhet to ascertain unauthorized us
our intellectual property, seizing at our live eteegoods that feature unauthorized use of ourl@tielal property and seeking restraining or
and/or damages in court against individuals ortiestiinfringing our intellectual property rightsu©failure to curtail piracy, infringement
other unauthorized use of our intellectual propeigits effectively, or our infringement of otherstellectual property rights, could advers
affect our operating results.

We could incur substantial liabilities if pending material litigation is resolved unfavorably.

We are currently a party to civil litigation, which concluded adversely to our interests, couldeaskely affect our operating results. In
ordinary course of business we become subjectriougacomplaints and litigation matters. The outeoofi litigation is inherently difficult t
assess and quantify, and the defense against Riofs ©r actions can be costly. Any adverse juddgrsemificantly in excess of our insurai
coverage could materially and adversely affectfmancial condition or results of operations.

Our insurance may not be adequate to cover liabilies resulting from accidents or injuries that occurduring our physically
demanding events.

We hold numerous live events each year. This sdhezhposes our performers and our employees whinaoéved in the production
those events to the risk of travel and performametated accidents, the consequences of which mapadully covered by insurance. 1
physical nature of our events exposes our perf@rtethe risk of serious injury or death. Althouglr performers, as independent contrac
are responsible for maintaining their own healikalility and life insurance, we séifsure health coverage for our performers in thenetha
they are injured while performing. We also seure a substantial portion of any other liabilityat we could incur relating to such injur
Liability to us resulting from any death or seridogiry sustained by one of our performers whilefgening, to the extent not covered by
insurance, could adversely affect our operatingltes

We face a variety of risks relating to new and compmentary businesses, including feature films.

We have entered into new or complementary busisgashe past and may do so again in the futureekample, we have recently ente
into the feature film business. Risks of expangsiway include: potential diversion of managemerattention and other resources, inclu
available cash, from our existing business; ungrated liabilities or contingencies; reduced eagridue to increased amortization, impairr
charges and other costs; competition from otherpzories with experience in such businesses; andhp®ssiditional regulatory requireme
and compliance costs.

Through his beneficial ownership of a substantial rajority of our Class B common stock, Mr. McMahon ca exercise control ove
our affairs, and his interests may conflict with tke holders of our Class A common stock.

We have Class A common stock and Class B commai.sithe holders of Class A common stock generalyetrights identical to holde
of Class B common stock, except that holders o§€k common stock are entitled to one vote perestaard holders of Class B common s
are entitled to ten votes per share. Holders di blatsses of common stock generally will vote tbhgets a single class on all matters pres:
to stockholders for their vote or approval, exapbtherwise required by applicable Delaware law.

A substantial majority of the issued and outstagdihares of Class B common stock is owned benhyidig Vincent K. McMahon. Mi
McMahon controls approximately 87% of the votingmeo of the issued and outstanding shares of oumoamstock. Through his benefic
ownership of a substantial majority of our Class@nmon stock, Mr. McMahon effectively can exerctsmtrol over our affairs, and |
interest could conflict with the holders of our &aA common stock. In addition, the voting poweiMsf McMahon through his ownership
our Class B common stock could discourage othens finitiating potential mergers, takeovers or otbleange of control transactions. A
result, the market price of our Class A commonlistmuld decline.

A substantial number of shares will be eligible forfuture sale by Mr. McMahon, and the sale of thosshares could lower our stoc
price.

Although the company is not aware of any such plaakes of substantial amounts of our Class B comstock by Mr. McMahon, or tl
perception that such sales could occur, may loleptevailing market price of our Class A commarckt



Our Class A common stock has a relatively small pule “float.”

Historically, as a result of our relatively smallilic float, our Class A common stock has been legsd than the common stock
companies with broader public ownership, and thditg prices for our Class A common stock have lmere volatile than generally may
the case for more widelgeld common stock. Among other things, trading oflatively small volume of our Class A common &totay hav
a greater impact on the trading price of our CRRg®mmon stock than would be the case if our pultdiat were larger.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.
Item 2. Properties

We have executive offices, television and imuscording studios, pogtroduction operations and warehouses at locatinnsrinea
Stamford, Connecticut. We also have offices in Néwark, London, Toronto and Los Angeles, and haveemdly established regior
international offices in Sydney, Australia; Tokylapan; and Shanghai, China. We own the buildingghich our executive and administrat
offices, our television and music recording studiosl our production operations are located. Weelspsce for our sales offices, WWE Fi
office, and other facilities.

Our principal properties consist of the following:

Square Expiration Date
Facility Location Feet Owned/Leased of Lease
Executive offices Stamford, CT 114,30( Owned —
Production studit Stamford, CT 39,00( Owned —
Ring/Photo studi Stamford, CT 5,60( Leasec May 11, 200¢
Executive office Los Angeles, C/¢ 2,10( Leasec July 15, 2007
Sales offices Various 16,40( Leasec Various through April 9, 201

All of the facilities listed above are utilized qur Live and Televised Entertainment, Consumer &etedand Digital Media segments, v
the exception of the executive office in Los Angel@hich focuses exclusively on our WWE Films segme

We have recently upgraded our television produdiaility to produce high definition broadcasting.order to allow for future growth v
have started a significant expansion project of television production facility. The capital expénde for this expansion during the ye
2008, 2009 and 2010 is expected to be approxim&@dto $75 million.

We also own a daycare facility in Stamford, Conioetton property adjacent to our production faigist The licensing and operation of
facility is managed by a thirgdarty contractor. We have the responsibility toagbthe required licenses and to ensure that ttitjameet:
health, safety, fire and building codes.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding

See Note 11 to Notes to Consolidated FinanciakB8tahts, which is included elsewhere in this ForaiK10
Item 4. Submission of matters to a vote of SecuHtglders

None.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters ars$slier Purchases of Equity Securities



Our Class A common stock trades on the Nevka@ock Exchange under the symbol “WWE.”

The following table sets forth the high and the Isade prices for the shares of Class A common siascleported by the New York St
Exchange and the dividends paid on shares of @laswal Class B common stock for the periods inditate

Fiscal year 2006

Quarter Ended July 29 October 2¢ January 27 April 30 Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $124¢ $ 138 $ 159C $ 176C $ 17.6C
Low $ 991 $ 11.8¢ $ 123t $ 142 $ 9.91
Class A and Class B dividends paid per share $ 01z $ 01z $ 024 % 02¢ $ 0.72

Transition period 2006

Quarter Ended July 28 October 27 December 31 N/A Full Period
Class A common stock price per share:
High $17.7¢ $ 1698 $ 16.7¢ N/A $ 17.7¢
Low $155¢ $ 149¢ $ 15.6( N/A $ 14.9¢
Class A and Class B dividends paid per share $ 022 $ 024 % 0.24 N/A $ 072

Fiscal Year 2007

Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 3( December 3. Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $166¢6 $ 186( $ 16.6¢ $ 158/ $ 18.6(
Low $155( $ 155¢ $ 13.4¢ $ 1398 $ 13.4¢
Class A and Class B dividends paid per share $ 022 $ 0242 % 024 % 02¢ $ 0.9¢

There were 10,985 holders of record of Clasemmon stock and four holders of record of CBRsommon stock on February 22, 2008.

On February 21, 2008, the Board of Directors atutledra regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.38hareholders of record on March
2008 that will be paid on or about March 25, 20@®.cent K. McMahon, Linda E. McMahon and membergtadir immediate family, as wi
as two trusts under which members of their immediamily are the sole beneficiaries, have waivedrtiespective rights to any portion of
quarterly cash dividend in excess of the first $Q2r share. This waiver applies to all Class A @tabs B common stock beneficially ow
by any of the parties for a three year period empdiebruary 2011, subject to earlier terminatiorthia event of the death of Vincent
McMahon, the majority stockholder. This waiver doest apply to any dividends other than regular tprr cash dividends that may
declared by the Board of Directors in the futuredmshares of Class A or Class B common stockiolig a transfer of the shares by an
these parties to any unrelated third parties.

Our quarterly cash dividend is based on a numbé&aatbrs, including our liquidity and historicalé&projected cash flows. The declara
and payment of dividends is subject to the disoretif the Board of Directors. Any determination@she payment of dividends will depenc
general economic and business conditions, ouregfiaplan, our financial results, contractual agghl restrictions and such other factors a
Board of Directors may consider to be relevant.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain informatiasith respect to securities authorized for issuamtger equity compensation plans a
December 31, 2007.

Number of securities Number of securities remaining
to be issued upon Weighted-average available forfiure issuance
exercise of outstandin exercise price of under equity compensation

options, warrants outstanding options plans (excluding securities



Plan Category and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))

@) (b) (c)

Equity compensation plans approved by securityédrsid
1999 Long Term Incentive Plan

Stock options 1,193,06: $ 13.1¢ 4,038,690 (1

Restricted stock units 761,38 N/A Same as abo
2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (1)

Performance stock units 584,97( N/A
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotgers N/A N/A N/A
Total 2,539,411 % 13.1¢ 4,038,69!

(1) The 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan will be included $hareholder approval as part of the 2008 Annueaktiig of stockholdet
Assuming such approval, the aggregate number okdb@sed awards will equal 5,000,000 reduced byntheber of shares gran
under the 1999 LTIP after the adoption by the Bazrthe Omnibus Plan (July 20, 2007) but beforeajiproval by shareholders at
2008 Annual Meeting. The number set forth in th#dabove reflects the net aggregate number avaitebof December 31, 20C

Item 6. Selected Financial Dat

The following table sets forth our selected finahdata for the twelve months ended December 307 2he eight month transition per
ended December 31, 2006 and each of the four fiszais in the period ended April 30, 2006. Thedebkfinancial data as of December
2007, December 31, 2006 and April 30, 2006 andHeryear ended December 31, 2007, the eight maatkition period ended December
2006 and the fiscal years ended April 30, 2006 Amd 30, 2005 have been derived from the auditedsolidated financial statements inclu
elsewhere in this Annual Report. The selected firdrdata as of April 30, 2005, April 30, 2004 aAgdril 30, 2003 and for the fiscal ye:
ended April 30, 2004 and April 30, 2003 have beerivéd from our audited consolidated financial estants, which are not included in -
Annual Report. You should read the selected firdrtata in conjunction with our consolidated finahstatements and related notes ant
information set forth under “Management’s Discuasémd Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuft©perations”"contained elsewhere
this Annual Report.

2007 T 2006 2006 2005 2004 2003

Financial Highlights:

Net revenues $485.7 $262.¢ $400.1 $366.« $374.¢ $374.:
Operating income $ 684 $ 392z $ 705 $ 50: $ 736 $ 26.¢
Income from continuing operations $ 521 ¢ 31€ $ 47C ¢$ 378 $ 49 $ 161
Net income (loss) (1) $ 521 $ 31€ $ 47.C $ 391 $ 482 $ (195
Earnings per share from continuing operatjafiluted $ 072 $ 044 $ 067 $ 054 $ 07z $ 0.2z
Earnings (loss) per share, diluted $ 072 $ 044 $ 067 $ 05¢ $ 0.7C $(0.2¢
Dividends paid per share $ 09 $ 072 $ 07z $ 03¢ $ 0.1¢€ N/A
Cash and short-term investments $266.« $248.z $280.¢ $258.1 $273.F $271.1
Total assets $470.7 $453.F $479.« $441.c $454°7 $432.%
Total debt $ 58 $ 67 $ 72 $ 8C $ 87 $ 99
Total stockholders’ equity $383.2 $385.7 $396.z $375f $353.1 $337.

(1) Included in our net income (loss) was the operatesylts of our discontinued operatiofifie Worldand the XFL, and their respect
estimated shutdown costs, which totaled approxilp&@, $0, $0, $1.4, ($1.4) and ($35.6) during 2002006, fiscal 2006, fiscal 20(
fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respective
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Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion in conjiimt with the audited consolidated financial statets and related notes inclus
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Background

In fiscal 2006 we expanded the number of our rejdet segments to four in order to better refleet tmanner in which managem



analyzes the performance of our Company, includingdigital media businesses and the productidieatire films. We have also reclassi
certain other operations between the reportablmeats. The following analysis outlines all mateaetivities contained within each segment.

Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales t@ levents, sales of merchandise at these live evevision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feegiéwing our pay-per-view and video on demandyprming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the direct saleWWE produced home videos and magazine publishitrayalties or license fe
related to various WWE themed products such asowj@enes, toys and books.

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisiteRigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and mabihtent.

WWE Films

e Revenues consist of our share of receipts frondisigibution of filmed entertainment featuring dbuperstars. Two feature films w
released in 2006 and one film was released in 206 participate in revenues generated under thghdifon of the films through ¢
media after the print and advertising and distidoutcosts incurred by our distributors have beauped and the results have k
reported to us.

We provide updated information on the kewelrs of our business including live event attendargay-perview buys, home vide
shipments, website traffic, and online merchandiasées on a monthly basis on our corporate webdtig//lsorporate.wwe.com. Su
information is not incorporated herein by reference

Results of Operations

Twelve Month Year Ended December 31, 2007 compardd Eight Month Transition Period Ended December 312006 (dollars ir
millions)

Summary
Net Revenue 2007 T 2006
Live and Televised Entertainment $316.¢ $183.(
Consumer Products 118.1 59.2
Digital Media 34.¢ 20.7
WWE Films 16.C —
Total $485.7 $262.¢
14
Cost of Revenues 2007 T 2006
Live and Televised Entertainment $202.¢ $114.¢
Consumer Products 45.¢ 28.7
Digital Media 21.c 13.5
WWE Films 29.1 —
Total $298.¢ $157.1
Profit contribution margin 38% 40%
Operating Income 2007 T 2006
Live and Televised Entertainment $100.2 $ 57.C

Consumer Products 68.€ 26.¢



Digital Media 6.3 3.8

WWE Films (14.€) (1.1)
Corporate (91.9 (47.9)
Total operating income $ 684 $ 39.2
Income from continuing operations $ 521 $ 31.¢

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segment betefrom strong performances both at internati@mal North American live events
we achieved total average attendance of 6,800 @7 28 compared to 5,300 in the eight month tramsiperiod. Our licensing based reve
accounted for approximately 40% of our Consumed®ets segment in 2007 as compared to 25% of segmesriues in the transition peri
reflecting higher toy and apparel based revenughdtld be noted that the 2006 transition periadndit reflect ‘holiday seasotitensing sale
which are recorded as the results are reported io the first calendar quarter. In addition, owrgazine publishing business continued to g
reflecting our increased circulation. Digital Med&venues for web based advertising and wirelesduysts accounted for $16.2 million in 2(
as compared to $7.3 million in the eight month $iaon period. In 2007 we recorded our first revenvelated to our features film releases,
total of $16.0 million has been recorded for olm& The MarineandSee No Evil

Revenues derived from international sources reptede25% and 23% of total net revenues in 2007Tad06, respectively.
Additional details regarding these summary redoltsw below.

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Live and Televised Entertagmhsegment:

Revenues-Live and Televised Entertainmen 2007 T 2006
Live events $ 99.: $ 52.2
Number of North American events 232 21z
Average North American attendance 6,60( 4,86(
Average North American ticket price (dolars $ 4047 $ 35.5¢
Number of international events 75 34
Average international attendance 7,70( 8,29(
Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 796 $ 68.41
Venue merchandise $ 191 ¢ 12.1
Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 107¢ $ 10.8¢
Pay-per-view $ 94 % 53.¢
Number of pay-per-view events 15 11
Number of buys from pay-per-view events 5,200,80! 3,287,30!
Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 174 $  15.4¢
Domestic retail price, excludiMgrestleManig(dollars) $ 399 § 39.9¢
WWE - 24/7 $ 49 $ 2.C
Advertising $ 58 % 4.t
Sponsorship advertising $ 12 % 0.5
Television rights fees
Domestic $ 59.¢ $ 38.(
International $ 326 % 20.7
Other $ 0.9 —
Total $ 3166 $ 183
Ratings:
Average weekly household ratings for Raw 3.7 3.6
Average weekly household ratings for Smaakbo 2.7 2.4
Average weekly household ratings for ECW 15 1.¢
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Cost of Revenued:-ive and Televised Entertainmen 2007 T 2006




Live events $ 712 $ 40.¢

Venue merchandise 11.4 8.1
Pay-per-view 43.€ 19.c
WWE - 24/7 2.1 —
Advertising 0.8 (0.3
Television 66.5 40.4
Other 7.1 6.3
Total $202.¢ $114.¢
Profit contribution margin 36% 3%

Live events revenue reflects approximately $61.Bioni for North American events and $37.4 millioor finternational events in 2007
compared to $36.6 million for North American eveatsd $15.7 million for international events in thight month 2006 transition perir
During 2007, average attendance at our North Araarievents was approximately 6,600 while averagmd#ince at our international eve
was 7,700. During the 2006 transition period, N&therican average attendance was approximately0gi@ average international attend:
was 8,300. We did not produce any stand-alone Exe¢r€hampionship Wrestling (“ECWHranded events in 2007. During the 2006 trans
period, we produced 38 ECW events that were hekirialler venues and consequently generated lowsndgince and revenues per evel
compared to ouRawand SmackDowrbrands. Beginning in 2007ECW'slive events were combined with oBmackDowrbrand. Live event
profit contribution margin was 28% in 2007 as conggao 22% in the 2006 transition period.

Venue merchandise revenues in 2007 were positivghacted by the increase in North American aveigttgndance. Per capita spent
dollars for venue sales were essentially flat. \emerchandise profit contribution margin was 4092007 as compared to 33% in the €
month transition period, reflecting lower cost afes from the expiration of a consulting servicgieament and reduced material costs.

Pay-periew revenue reflects approximately 5.2 million bup 2007 as compared to 3.3 million buys in th@&€@ansition period. Tt
average number of buys reported for the fifteemevéhat occurred in 2007 was 347,000 as compar&9@,000 buys for the ten events
occurred in the 2006 transition. In 2007, our pemannual pay-peview event, WrestleMania 23, generated approxinate? million buys
WrestleMania 22 occurred in April 2006 and is tliere not included in the results of the 2006 traosiperiod. Domestic buys, which cart
higher price per buy, represented 66% of total blysng 2007 as compared to 61% of total buys 2006 transition period. The pay-per-
view profit contribution margin was 54% in the twelmonth 2007 period as compared to 64% in thet @igimth transition period. The 2C
profit margin reflected additional spending in gagr-view promotion and consumer advertising in suppf WrestleMania

Advertising revenues include sales of advertisingoar Canadian television programs as well as uardomestic sponsorship packa
Advertising cost of revenues reflects costs assediaith the increased sponsorship related aa#iti the current year.

The increase in domestic television rights fees pragarily due to the rights fees received for @@W programming in the current ye
The increase in television cost of revenues is ariipn due to the production of television shows Mton tour internationally, as we produ
six of these televised international shows in 280 ¢ompared to two shows during the transitionogeri
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The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Consumer Products segment:

Revenues-Consumer Product: 2007 T 2006
Licensing $ 471 % 14.7
Magazine publishing $ 16 % 8.E
Net units sold 4,858,40! 2,793,60
Home video $ 537 $ 35.t
Gross DVD units shipped 4,034,16 3,283,80
Other $ 08 $ 0.t
Total $ 118.1 % 59.2
Cost of Revenueszonsumer Product: 2007 T 2006
Licensing $11¢ $ 3.8
Magazine publishing $11.4 6.8
Home video $21.€ 17.€

Other $ 0.7 0.2



Total $45.¢ .
Profit contribution margin 61% 52%
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Licensing revenues in 2007 reflect approximately.81million in the toy category, $18.3 million ihe videogame category and §
million related to apparel and novelties. 2007 eetf revenues from the videogame titl&SthackDown vs. Raw 2007%&leased in thre
platforms versus two platforms for the prior reke@s this series. The success of our apparel pnognathe United States, South Africa,
United Kingdom, and Australia helped to generatpraxmately $6.1 million in 2007. In the 2006 trdimn period, revenues refleci
approximately $5.0 million in the toy category, $2nillion in the videogame category and $3.3 millicelated to apparel and novelt
Licensing revenue is dependent upon the releasedatd of products and is affected by the timingwiifen licensees report results to
Licensing cost of revenue consists primarily ofetal royalties and agent commissions paid to ownBing agents. The licensing pr
contribution margin was 75% in 2007 as comparet8s in the 2006 transition period.

In July 2006, we began publishing a new megatitted WWE Magazinghat replaced our two former magazinBsw and SmackDowi
Including our ‘special’ magazine titles that areblished periodically during the year, we publishegnty-one issues in 2007 as compare
sixteen issues in the 2006 transition period. Tla@amzine publishing profit contribution margin wak¥@in 2007 as compared to 20% in
2006 transition periodThe profit contribution in the 2006 transition petiwas impacted by additional editorial and contedts associat
with the creation of the neWWWE Magazine.

Home video revenue reflects the sale of approxilpat® million gross DVD units in 2007 as compated3.3 million gross units in tl
2006 transition period. Included in the succestflds released in 2007 wa¥restleMania23, which shipped approximately 367,000 g
units. The home video profit contribution marginsm@0% in 2007 as compared to 50% in the 2006 tiansperiod, reflecting improve
distribution and production costs.

The following chart provides performance resultd key drivers for our Digital Media segment:

RevenuesDigital Media 2007 T 2006
WWE.com $ 16z $ 7.3
WWEShop $ 18 $ 134
Average revenues per order (dollars) $54.92 $53.2¢
Total $ 34 $ 20.7
Cost of Revenuedigital Media 2007 T 2006
WWE.com $ 76 $ 423
WWEShop $13.7 9.2
Total $21.c $13¢
Profit contribution margin 3% 35%
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WWE.com revenue in 2007 reflects additionabvadvertising and wireless content. Wilsed advertising accounted for approximi
$10.4 million in revenues as compared to $5.5 aiillin the 2006 transition period. 2007 also inctidpproximately $4.3 million in wirele
based revenues, primarily driven by our my#ar deal with AT&T Wireless to provide exclusiveWE content, including videos and r
tones. The WWE.com profit contribution margin w&8%in 2007 as compared 41% in the 2006 transiteriog.

WWEShop revenue in 2007 reflects approximately B2®,customer orders as compared to 244,000 custorders in the 2006 eic
month transition period. The sale of exclusive WWE&S packages and an increase in the variety ofioffe available on WWESh
contributed to the increase in average customendsper order. The WWEShop profit contribution margias 26% in 2007 as compare:
35% in the 2006 transition period.

WWE Films

During 2007, revenues from our WWE Films segmentev$d6.0 million. WWE participates in revenues agsed with our film projec
when the distribution and advertising costs inaditsg our distributors have been recouped and thdteehave been reported to us. The rev
recorded in 2007 relates to our feature filile Marine and See No Evil

In the current year, we expensed approximately1$g8llion of feature film production assets. Inchatlin this amount was a $15.7 mill
film asset impairment charge related to the perforce of our April 2007 theatrical releasehe Condemned which only achieve
approximately $7.4 million in gross domestic bofice receipts. Our feature film production assdabee is expensed in proportion with



recognition of revenue. During 2007 we expensedGhdllion of feature film production assets duethe revenue recorded relating The
Marine and See No Evil for which we expensed $8.5 million and $4.5 railli respectively. Additionally, we expensed appmadely $0.:
million of development costs for abandoned projects

The following chart reflects the amounts of certsignificant overhead items:

Selling, General & Administrative Expense 2007 T 2006
Staff related $ 50.2 $29.¢
Legal, accounting and other professional 14.C 6.1
Stock compensation 7.8 4.8
Advertising and promotion 5.4 3.4
Bad debt 0.1 (1.€)
All other 31.5 18.¢
Total SG&A $109.1 $61(
SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 23% ?%

Staff related expenses increased due in part tedhénued expansion of our Digital Media contetatffsand advertising sales force. -
increase in legal, accounting and other professifees reflects additional costs associated wakdémark filings and costs associated witr
Talent Wellness program. Stock compensation expen2807 includes amortization of restricted stockt and performance stock unit gre
issued to employees. Bad debt expense in the ti@ngieriod included the reversal of previouslyemeed accounts for which we subseque
recovered.

2007 T 200¢

&
o
™

Depreciation and amortization $9.3

Depreciation expense has increased due to thd@uddit capital projects.

Investment income $91 $64

Interest expense $06 $04

Other (expense) income, net $0.5) $0.¢
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Provision for Income Taxe: 2007 T 2006

Provision $24: $14¢F

Effective tax rate 32% 31%

The current year effective tax rate is caesiswith the prior years’ rate due to high level$ax-exempt interest, the continued increase!
benefits from domestic production activities and itinpact of the reversal of liabilities establisliedpreviously unrecognized tax positions.

Results of Operations

Eight Month Transition Period Ended December 31, 206 compared to Twelve Month Fiscal Year Ended April30, 2006 (dollars il
millions)

Summary

Net Revenue T 2006 2006
Live and Televised Entertainment $183.C $290.¢




Consumer Products 59.2 86.4
Digital Media 20.7 22.¢
WWE Films — —
Total $262.¢ $400.1
Cost of Revenue T 2006 2006
Live and Televised Entertainment $114.¢ $178.¢
Consumer Products 28.7 34.4
Digital Media 13.5 14.2
WWE Films — —
Total $157.1 $227.:
Profit contribution margin 4C% 43%
Operating Income: T 2006 2006
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 57.C $ 93¢
Consumer Products 26.€ 46.4
Digital Media 3.8 2.8
WWE Films (1.1 (1.2
Corporate (479 (7119
Total operating income $ 392 $ 70&
Income from continuing operations $ 316 $ 47.C

Our eight month 2006 transition period results wpasitively impacted by several factors. In our dignd Televised Entertainm
segment, our live events reflected strong North Aca@ attendance and corresponding sales of medid®at these events. In our Const
Products segment, our home video business contittusdrpass previous shipment records as the nuailigyDs shipped in the eight mot
transition period exceeded shipments for the ettisdve month fiscal 2006 period. These positivetdes were offset, in part, by the absenc
$13.7 million of domestic cable advertising salesour Live and Televised Entertainment segment, tdueur agreement with the U!

Network.

Revenues derived from international sources reptede23% and 24% of total net revenues in the 200&ition period and fiscal 20(

respectively.

Additional details regarding these summary redoltsw below.
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The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Live and Televised Entertagmhsegment:

Revenues-Live and Televised Entertainmen T 2006 2006
Live events $ 52 % 75.C
Number of North American events 212 24¢
Average North American attendance 4,86( 4,99(
Average North American ticket price (dollars $ 355 $ 37.3¢
Number of international events 34 52
Average international attendance 8,29( 9,16(
Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 68.41 $ 69.1¢
Venue merchandise $ 121 % 147
Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 10.8¢ $ 10.57
Pay-per-view $ 534 $ 94.¢
Number of pay-per-view events 11 16
Number of buys from pay-per-view events 3,287,301 6,241,10
Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 15.46 $ 14.9¢
Domestic retail price, excludiMyrestleManigdollars) $ 399t § 34.9¢



Advertising $ 45 % 22.€

Sponsorship advertising $ 05 $ 2.8
Television rights fees

Domestic $ 38.C $ 53.C

International $ 20.7 % 28.t
Other $ 20 % 2.2
Total $ 183.C $ 290.¢
Ratings

Average weekly household ratings for Raw 3.9 4.C

Average weekly household ratings for Smackbo 2.4 2.8

Average weekly household ratings for ECW 1.9 —
Cost of Revenued-ive and Televised Entertainmen T 2006 2006
Live events $ 40.¢ $ 56.€
Venue merchandise 8.1 10.€
Pay-per-view 19.c 42.2
Advertising (0.7) 6.8
Television 40.4 53.¢
Other 6.3 8.3
Total $114.¢ w

Profit contribution margin 37% 39%

Live events revenue reflects approximately $36.6ianifor North American events and $15.7 millioor finternational events in the 2(
transition period as compared to $46.7 million Korth American events and $28.3 for internationadres in fiscal 2006. During the 2(
transition period, average attendance at our NArtterican events was approximately 4,900 while ayerattendance at our internatic
events was 8,300. This compares to fiscal 2006H\N@Merican average attendance of approximately®ad@l average international attend:
of 9,200. We produced 38 Extreme Championship Wingsf'ECW") branded events in the transition period which had\erage attendar
of 1,100 and an average ticket price of approxitge#25.00. ECW events were held in smaller venukkRvgenerated lower attendance
revenues per event as compared to Raw and SmackDowrbrands.Excluding our ECW events, North American averagenatance we
approximately 5,700 in the transition period, drd&s increase from fiscal 2006. The live eventsipoaitribution margin was 22% in the ei
month transition period as compared to 24% in telve month fiscal 2006 period. This decline infiroontribution was due, in part, to 1
costs associated with the production of the ECWhesvim the transition period.
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Venue merchandise revenues in transition 2006 weséively impacted by the increase in North Amaniaverage attendance as the
capita spending dollars for venue sales were ceemgisvith fiscal 2006. The venue merchandise pagfittribution margin was 33% in the ei
month transition period as compared to 28% in thel\te month fiscal 2006 period. This increase iofiprmargin reflected a reduction
building rental costs in the 2006 transition period

Pay-periew revenue reflects approximately 3.3 million buy the 2006 transition period as compared ton@lRon buys in fiscal 200t
The domestic retail price of our pay-peew events was increased from $34.95 to $39.9%1in 2006, representing our first increase in t
price in more than four years. The average numbbuygs reported for the ten events that occurreloitth the 2006 transition period and fit
2006 were 300,000 and 325,000, respectively. Tadik in the number of buys was offset, in paytthe increased domestic retail price
International buys, which carry a lower price peybrepresented 39% of total buys during the ttaorsiperiod as compared to 37% of t
buys in fiscal 2006. The pay-peirew profit contribution margin was 64% in the eighonth transition period as compared to 55% intivedve
month fiscal 2006 period. The fiscal 2006 periodluded an investment in global marketing campaignsupport of our pay-periew
programming which consequently reduced the proéitgm.

Advertising revenues in the 2006 transition perindluded sales of advertising on our Canadian isilew programs and vario
sponsorship packages that totaled approximately dlion. Under the terms of our domestic cablgtridbution agreement with USA Netwao
which began in October 2005, we no longer sellatigipate in any domestic cable advertising. Therdase in advertising cost of rever
reflects the absence of costs associated witmgedibmestic cable advertising in the transitioriquer

Domestic television rights fees in the 2006 traosifperiod reflect payments received for our EC\Wgoam on the SCI FI Channel t
were not included in fiscal 2006. Internationalhtig fees for the 2006 transition period are coestswith rights fees received in fiscal 2C
The television profit contribution margin was 31#&the eight month transition period as compared8igs in fiscal 2006. This reduction is d



in part, to an overall increase in the costs iredito produce televised events, including additidit@ct costs for the production of our wee
ECW television program.

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Consumer Products segment:

Revenues-Consumer Product: T 2006 2006
Licensing $ 147 $ 32.2
Magazine publishing $ 85 $ 11.1
Net units sold 2,793,60 4,096,70
Home video $ 358 42.€
Gross DVD units shipped 3,283,80! 2,883,20!
Other $ 05 $ 0.t
Total $ 592 % 86.4
Cost of Revenueszonsumer Product: T 2006 2006
Licensing $ 38 $ 8¢F
Magazine publishing 6.8 6.S
Home video 17.¢ 18.€
Other 0.3 0.4
Total $28.7 $34.
Profit contribution margin 5% 60%

Licensing revenues in the 2006 transition perioitece approximately $5.0 million in the toy categp$2.9 million in the videogan
category and $3.3 million related to novelties apgparel. In fiscal 2006, revenues reflected appnatgly $8.5 million in the toy catego
$14.5 million in the videogame category and $4.8ioni related to novelties and appar¥ideogame revenue is dependent upon the re
schedule of new games and licensees reportingtsesulus. Fiscal 2006 reflects revenues from twe tides released as compared tc
revenues reported for new releases in the trangigsiod. Revenues from our latest videogame relga8006 was reported in 2007. Licen:
cost of revenue consists primarily of talent rogaltand agent commissions paid to our licensingtag@he licensing profit contribution mar
was 74% in both the eight month 2006 transitionqaeand the twelve month fiscal 2006 period.
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In July 2006, we began publishing a new magatitted WWE Magazinghat replaced our two former magazinBawand SmackDowi
Including magazine special issues, we publishesixissues in the 2006 transition period as coeaptr thirtytwo issues in fiscal 2006. T
magazine publishing profit contribution margin w2 in the eight month transition period as comgpace38% in the twelve month fis
2006 period. Thelecline in the profit contribution margin reflecar increased editorial and content costs assaciaith producing our ne
WWE Magazine

Home video revenue reflects the sale of approxip@&®& million gross DVD units in the 2006 transiti period as compared to 2.9 mill
gross units in fiscal 2006. Included in the suchdsttles released in the 2006 transition periodswVrestleMania22, which shippe
approximately 425,000 gross units, representingargest selling DVD release in our history. Thergase in home video costs is primarily
to the increased volume of home video sales irntréngsition period, reflecting higher duplicationdagistribution fees. The home video pr
contribution margin was 50% in the 2006 transiti@niod as compared to 56% in fiscal 2006, reflectirdecline in the sethrough percentay
in the transition period.

The following chart provides performance fessand key drivers for our Digital Media segment:

RevenuesDigital Media T 2006 2006
WWE.com $ 73 $ 97
WWEShop $ 13.C $ 121
Average revenues per order (dollars) $53.2¢ $53.4:
Other $ 04 $ 11
Total $ 207 $ 22.¢
Cost of Revenuedigital Media T 2006 2006

WWE.com $ 43 $ 52



WWEShop 8.5 7.8

Other 0.7 1.2
Total $138 $14:
Profit contribution margin 35% 38%

WWE.com revenue in the 2006 transition period mfleapproximately $5.5 million in advertising reues as compared to $7.3 millior
fiscal 2006. Revenues for other internet basedatipss in the transition period, including webcastpay-perview events, subscription bas
content and wireless content were $1.8 million @sgared to $2.4 million in fiscal 2006. The WWE.cpnofit contribution margin was 41
in the 2006 transition period as compared to 46%soal 2006. The reduction in the profit margintte transition period reflects higher con
based expenses.

WWEShop revenue in the 2006 transition period oéflepproximately 244,000 customer orders as coadpir approximately 226,0
orders received in the twelve month period of fi2206. The sale of exclusive WWEShop packagesaanihcrease in the category offeri
available on WWEShop contributed to the increasthinnumber of orderhe WWEShop profit contribution margin was 35% lire 2001
transition period as compared to 36% in fiscal 2006

WWE Films

During the eight month 2006 transition period weeased two feature filmssee No Eviland The Marine,to theaters in widespre
distribution. See No Evilwas released domestically in theaters in May 208& en DVD in November 2006The Marinewas release
domestically in theaters in October 2006 and on DMDJanuary 2007. During the 2006 transition pemasl incurred approximately $1t
million in capitalized production costs for ourrthifeature film,The Condemnegwhich was released in April 2007. As of DecemB&y 200I
we had recorded approximately $53.6 million in talped feature film production costs. We do natiggate in any revenues associated
these film projects until the print and advertisowsts incurred by our distributors have been rpedwand the results have been reported:
Accordingly, no revenues had been recorded in @86 2ransition period.
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The following chart reflects the amounts of certsigmificant overhead items:

Selling, General & Administrative Expense T 2006 2006
Staff related $29.¢ $44.
Legal, accounting and other professional 6.1 10.€
Stock compensation 4.8 4.7
Advertising and promotion 34 5.2
Bad debt (1.6 0.t
All other 184 25.¢
Total SG&A $61.0C $91.c
SG&A as a percentage of net revenues ?% 23%

Legal and accounting fees were reduced in theitramgeriod based on the number of active caséisigation and a reduction in the ¢
of Sarbane®©xley compliance. The fiscal 2006 amount of legal ather professional expenses included a $2.1lomiblenefit for net positiy
legal settlements. Bad debt expense in the trangiteriod reflects the reversal of previously reedraccounts for which we expect to recover.

T2006 2006
$1

©
o
o
o

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense has declawethe amount of capitalized property, plant andipggent and film libraries th
became fully depreciated and amortized continuagddiease.

T2006 2006
Investment income $64 $7.¢

Investment income in the transition period haséased based on higher short term interest ratedesntdases in realized investment los

T 200€ 2006
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Interest expense

T 200¢ 2006

Other income, net $0c $0¢€
Provision for Income Taxe:! T 200€ 2006
Provision $14.5  $30.¢
Effective tax rate 31% 40%

The transition period effective tax rate dsvér than historical rates due to increased taxa@tenterestincreased tax benefits frc
domestic production activities and the favorablglesment of income tax examinations. In additidme effective tax rate for fiscal 2006 v
higher than historical rates primarily due to readl capital losses and an increase in state aattioes.

Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2006 compared to Fiscatear Ended April 30, 2005 (dollars in millions)

Summary

better

Net Revenue 2006 2005 (worse;
Live and Televised Entertainment $290.6 $299:¢ (3)%
Consumer Products 86.4 53.¢ 60%
Digital Media 22.€ 13.C 76%
WWE Films — — —
Total $400.1 $366. 9%
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better
Cost of Revenue 2006 2005 (worse;
Live and Televised Entertainment $178.¢ $181.¢ 2%
Consumer Products 34.4 23.2 (48)%
Digital Media 14.2 8.2 (73)%
WWE Films — — —
Total $227.. $213.: (%
Profit contribution margin 43% 42%

better
Operating Income: 2006 2005 (worse;
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 93.¢ $100.¢ ()%
Consumer Products 46.4 26.¢ 72%
Digital Media 2.8 1.2 142%
WWE Films (1.9 (1.0 (30)%
Corporate (71.9 (77.9 8%
Total operating income $ 70.5 $ 50. 40%
Income from continuing operations $ 47.C $ 37.t 24%

The increase in net revenues and operatiognie for fiscal 2006 principally reflected addit@rpay-perview buys in our Live ar
Televised Entertainment segment and the growthuoflioensing and home video businesses in our GuaeswProducts segment. Also,
revenues associated with WWEShop, our internetdbssgefront, more than doubled from fiscal 20058jalv drove the increase in the Dig
Media segmentThese increases were offset, in part, by the alesen®17.5 million from domestic cable advertissgjes in our Live ar
Televised Entertainment segment, due to our agneemi¢h the USA NetworkRevenues derived from international sources reptede249
of total net revenues in both fiscal 2006 and 1i2€95.



Additional details regarding these summary redoltsw below.

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Live and Televised Entertagmhsegment:

better

RevenuesLlive and Televised Entertainmen 2006 2005 (worse;
Live events $ 75.C % 78.7 (5)%
Number of North American events 24¢ 27€ (10)%
Average North American attendance 4,99( 4,25( 17%
Average North American ticket price (dollars $ 37.3¢  $ 38.61 (3)%
Number of international events 52 49 6%
Average international attendance 9,16( 9,07(C 1%
Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 69.1¢ $ 74.5:¢ (7)%
Venue merchandise $ 147 3% 12.€ 15%
Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 1057 $ 9.54 11%
Pay-per-view $ 94.¢ $ 85.5 11%
Number of pay-per-view events 16 14 14%
Number of buys from pay-per-view events 6,241,10 5,280,80! 18%
Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 149¢ $ 15.9¢ (6)%
Domestic retail price, excludivyrestleManiadollars) $ 3498 $ 34.9¢ —
Advertising $ 22¢ $ 43.7 (48)%
Sponsorship revenues $ 28 % 4.7 (40)%
Television rights fees
Domestic $ 53.C % 53.2 —
International $ 28t % 24.¢ 15%
Other $ 22 % 0.8 175%
Total $ 290.¢ $ 299.k Q)%
Ratings
Average weekly household ratings for Raw 4.0 3.7 8%
Average weekly household ratings for SmaakBo 2.8 3.2 (13)%
24
better
Cost of Revenued:-ive and Televised Entertainmen 2006 2005 (worse;
Live events $ 56.¢ $ 59.t 5%
Venue merchandise 10.€ 8.4 (26)%
Pay-per-view 42.2 36.8 (16)%
Advertising 6.8 14.€ 53%
Television 53.¢ 53.€ —
Other 8.3 8.8 6%
Total $178.¢ $181.¢ 2%
Profit contribution margin 39% 39%

Live events revenue decreased primarily due ton@l@verage ticket price in fiscal 2006, specifical international markets. This decl
in revenues was offset, in part, by an increagbenaverage attendance. In fiscal 2005 we begaadbasting our Raw and SmackDown sh
from international locations at certain times dgriour international tours. We broadcasted fourvtsien shows from international locatic
with total attendance of approximately 35,000 anceerage ticket price of $76.00 in fiscal 2006¢c@asipared to six of these types of shov



fiscal 2005 with total attendance of approximaté®000 and an average ticket price of approximas®§.00, which generated a declin
revenues in the current year of approximately $4ilion. The decrease in live events cost of revenwas primarily attributable to 1
production of 25 fewer events in fiscal 2006.

Venue merchandise revenues increased due to hipraestic per capita spending dollars for venuessaléne increase in ven
merchandise cost of revenues was due to the volundeype of products sold at our live events indi006.

Pay-periew revenues increased due to the recording ofcerpately 960,000 additional buys in fiscal 20@@mpared to fiscal 20(
There were 16 pay-peiew events produced in fiscal 2006 as compared4tevents in fiscal 2005. The two additional everamprise:
approximately 524,000 of the total additional baggserated in fiscal 2006. International buys, whialry a lower price per buy, continuet
rise, representing 37% of total buys during fis2@06 as compared to 30% of total buys in fiscal520the increase in pay-peiew cost o
revenues is due, in part, to approximately $3.2ionilof costs related to the production of the @ellitional events in fiscal 2005, as well a
investment in global marketing campaigns in suppbdur pay-per-view business and the WWE brand.

Advertising revenues decreased due to ouregtimcable distribution agreement whereby our Rewgram and a onkeur weekend Ra
branded program air on USA Network. Under the teofthis agreement, we no longer sell or parti@gatany advertising revenue gener.
by these programs. We receive rights fees from W&&fwork similar to those received from SpikeTV, ahiaired Raw until October 20t
Advertising revenues in fiscal 2006 also includesaf advertising on our Canadian television paogg and various sponsorship package:
totaled approximately $8.9 million. The decreasadivertising cost of revenues reflects the absehoests associated with selling dome
cable advertising for seven months of fiscal 2006.

The increase in international rights feestli@r current year is primarily due to increasecneies generated in India and South Korea.

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Consumer Products segment:

better
Revenues-Consumer Product: 2006 2005 (worse;
Licensing $ 32z % 20.¢ 54%
Magazine publishing $ 111 8 12.2 (9)%
Net units sold 4,096,70 4,058,201 1%
Home video $ 42.€ $ 20.1 112%
Gross DVD units shipped 2,883,20! 1,868,401 54%
Other $ 0t % 0.7 (29)%
Total $ 86.4 $ 53.¢ 60%
25
better
Cost of Revenueszonsumer Products 2006 2005 (worse,
Licensing $ 85 $ 64 (33)%
Magazine publishing 6.9 7.2 1%
Home video 18.€ 9.2 (102)%
Other 0.4 0.t 2C%
Total $34.4 $23.: (48)%
Profit contribution margin 60% 57%

Licensing revenues increased primarily due to & $illion increase in the toy category and a $4illion increase in the multimedia ga
category. In fiscal 2006 oiBmackDown vs. Raw 200&leo gamewas released and sold approximately 2.9 milliorsgnanits on the PSP ¢
PS2 platforms. Licensing revenues include $1.3ionilin music revenues in fiscal 2006 as comparekDt8 million in fiscal 2005. The incre:
in licensing cost of revenues, consisting primadfytalent royalties and agent commissions paidup licensing agents, reflects the hic
licensing revenues in fiscal 2006. Our talent paymrcentage varies as the mix of royalty bearirgpcts sold by our licensees varies f
period to period.

Magazine publishing revenues decreased primarig/tdua decline in the newsstand copies sold iraffiR606 as compared to fiscal 2C
Special magazines published in the prior year ohetlia two-part retrospective surrounding the hystdWrestleMania

Home video revenues increased due to the 48% iseri@agross units sold combined with an approxing&0 increase in the per t



sales price of DVDs. Fiscal 2006 included the r&deaf several multi-disc titles includingrestleMania 21, Tombstone: The History of
UndertakerandBret the Hitman Hart: The Best There Is...The Besr@Was...The Best There Ever Will Biso released in fiscal 2006 w
WrestleMania: The Complete Antholobggx set, a 21 disc retrospective with a $279.95yssted retail price and sets of W&estleManii
Anthologybroken into fiveyear series. The increase in home video costs vimsly due to the increased volume of home vidates in fisc:
2006, reflecting duplication and distribution fees.

The following chart provides performance fessand key drivers for our Digital Media segment:

better

RevenuesDigital Media 2006 2005 (worse,
WWE.com $ 97 $ 78 24%
WWEShop $ 121 $ 4EF 16<%
Average revenues per order (dollars) $53.4. $47.7¢ 12%
Other $ 11 $ 0.7 57%
Total $ 22¢ $ 13« 76%
better
Cost of Revenuedigital Media 2006 2005 (worse,
WWE.com $52 $35 (49)%
WWEShop 7.8 3.7 (111)%
Other 12 1C (20)%
Total $14.2  $8.2 (73)%
Profit contribution margin 38% 3%

The increase in WWE.com revenues reflects a $1llbomincrease in advertising revenues as compéoefiscal 2005. Also, revenu
associated with other internet based operatiorduding webcasts of pay-peiew events and subscription based content, inerkds
approximately $0.4 million in fiscal 2006. The irese in WWE.com cost of sales is primarily dueitihér streaming related expenses, b
on a larger portion of our content being distriloLtierough streaming videos.

The increase in WWEShop revenues reflects an appate 140% growth in the number of customer orderapproximately 226,0(
orders in fiscal 2006. The additional revenues grd in fiscal 2006 reflect an increase in theraye order price by $5.64. The categ
offerings were also increased to better appealwidar array of consumers and the sale of excludWEShop packages also contribute
the increased revenues. The increase in WWEShdpotasvenues is directly correlated to the incees orders processed in fiscal 2(
reflecting an increase in the costs of materiatsfatfillment as compared to fiscal 2005.
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The following chart reflects the amounts aedcent change of certain significant overheadstem

better

Selling, General & Administrative Expense 2006 2005 (worse;
Staff related $44.7 $41.z (8)%
Legal, accounting and other professional 10.¢ 16.1 32%
Advertising and promotion 5.2 6.3 17%
Stock compensation 4.7 4.1 ()%
Bad debt 0.5 0.7 29%
All other 25¢  22¢ (15)%
Total SG&A $91.¢ $91.C ()%
SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 23% ?%

Staff related expenses increased, in part, duednuad employee incentive bonus payments thatimked to our achievement of cert
performance thresholds. Professional fees decrahsetb a reduction in the cost of Sarba@atey compliance and $2.1 million of net posi
legal settlements in fiscal 2006. Stock compensatipense primarily relates to the amortizatiomestricted stock grants issued to emplo
under our 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”).



better
2006 2005 (worse;

Depreciation and amortization $10.f $11.¢ 12%

Depreciation and amortization expense declinethasinount of capitalized property, plant and eqeipinthat became fully depreciate:
fiscal 2006 exceeded the depreciation associatédoapital additions in fiscal 2005.

better
2006 2005 (worse;

Investment income $74 $54 37%

The increase in investment income reflects highertserm interest rates.

better

2006 2005 (worse;
Interest expense $ 0.6 $ 0. —
better
2006 2005 (worse;
Other income, net $ 0€ $ 1.3 (54)%
Provision for Income Taxe: 2006 2005
Provision $ 30.¢ $ 18.¢
Effective tax rate 40% 33%

The rise in the effective tax rate for fiscal 200&s primarily due to realized capital losses andnanease in state and local taxes
addition, the effective tax rate in fiscal 2005 wawer primarily due to the release of a valuatalobwance no longer necessary upon
assignment of the lease Biie Worldto a third party and other state tax benefits.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows provided by operating activities wer®.89million and $22.3 million for December 31, 2087d the December 31, 2006 e
month transition period, respectively. Cash flowsvided by operating activities were $67.3 and $1illion for the fiscal years ended Ay
30, 2006, and 2005, respectively. Cash flows pedidy operating activities vary, in part, due te timing of our productions and the rele
amortization of feature films. The increase in cfistvs provided by operating activities in 2007leets the impact of feature film amortizat
and decreased cash flows used for feature filmywiah, which were $1.8 million, $17.5 million, 8/million and $28.3 million for 2007, t
2006 transition period, and the fiscal years endjad 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The estimatash to be used in fiscal 2008 for fes
film production costs is approximately $20.0 to &Btillion, depending on the number and type ahfiprojects selected. Working capi
consisting of current assets less current liabditivas $276.1 million, $255.3 million and $285.diom of December 31, 2007, December
2006 and April 30, 2006, respectively.
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Net cash flows provided by investing activities 207 were $13.0 million, while cash flows usednivesting activities were $64.4 milli
in the 2006 transition period. Cash flows providgdinvesting activities for fiscal years 2006 ariD2 were $84.9 million and $15.8 millic
respectively. In the 2006 transition period we pased approximately $77.4 million of short termestments. As of February 22, 2008,
had approximately $114.2 million invested primaiityfixed income mutual funds and municipal bon@sir investment policy is designec
preserve capital and minimize interest rate, crawaiit market risk.

Capital expenditures for fixed asset projects vegngroximately $18.2 million, $5.1 million $9.4 nidlh, and $5.1 million in 2007, transiti
2006, fiscal 2006, and 2005, respectively. We speproximately $0.4 million, $2.7 million, $0.9 fidin, and $0.2 million on the purchase
film library and other intangible assets in 200@nsition 2006, fiscal 2006, and 2005, respectiv€lgpital expenditures in 2007 reflec
approximately $10.1 million related to our trarwmitito high definition broadcasting. Fiscal 2006luded approximately $4.6 million for t
purchase of land adjacent to our television stu@apital expenditures in 2008 are expected to hedmn $25 million and $30 millio
reflecting significant projects related to telewisiequipment and capital building improvementsofiar television production studio.

Cash flows used in financing activities for 2007¥e 2006 transition period and the fiscal years dmgaril 30, 2006 and 2005, were $6
million, $46.8 million, $33.5 million, and $24.2 lin, respectively. In 2007, we paid four quaryechsh dividends of $0.24 on all Class A



Class B common shares, for an aggregate amour@307 $nillion. In the 2006 transition period, we gpdtiree quarterly cash dividends, at $!
per share on all Class A and Class B common shimesn aggregate amount of $51.0 million. In fls2806, we paid four quarterly ce
dividends, including two dividends at a rate oflf0per share and two dividends at $0.24 per shagdl €lass A and Class B common shz
for an aggregate amount of $50.1 million. This cameg to dividends paid of $24.7 million in fiscdl0B. In February 2008, the Boarc
Directors authorized an increase in the quartealshcdividend to $0.36 per share on all Class A comshares not held by the McMal
family, which is expected to be paid on or aboutréha25, 2008. The quarterly dividend on all Classt&res, held by members of
McMahon family and their respective trusts, wilhrain at $0.24 per share as they have waived regularterly cash dividends in exces:
$0.24 per share for a period of three years. Assgrtfie continuation of these respective cash gpadé/idend rates of $0.36 per share
$0.24 per share and the same stock ownershipstmated amount of dividends to be paid for theoupiag fiscal year is approximately $8
million.

We believe that cash generated from operato from existing cash and shtatm investments will be sufficient to meet ourtcaged
over the next twelve months for working capitapital expenditures, feature film production and plagment of dividends.

Contractual Obligations

In addition to londerm debt, we have entered into various other actgrunder which we are required to make guarantegchent:
including:

e Various operating leases for office space and eneit.

e Employment contract with Vincent K. McMahon, whiims through October 2009, with annual renewaleetifeer if not terminated |
us or Mr. McMahon, as well as a talent contrachviitr. McMahon that is coterminous with his employrheontract. Mr. McMahc
began waiving all of his compensation under theggsements in 2007, except for a salary of $850p@0§ear.

e Employment contract with Linda E. McMahon, whicimsuthrough October 2009, with annual renewals #fgFeif not terminated by
or Mrs. McMahon. Mrs. McMahon began waiving alllefr compensation under this agreement in 2007 pgfoea salary of $500,01
per year.

e Other employment contracts, which are generallyof-to three-year terms.

e Service contracts with certain of our independemti@ctors, including our talent, which are gerlgrar one-to four-year terms.
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Our aggregate minimum payment obligations undesdheontracts as of December 31, 2007, assumingcdhénued waiver ¢
compensation by Mr. and Mrs. McMahon (except fer éinnual salaries of $850,000 and $500,000, raspbgtnoted above), were as follows:

Payments due by period

($ in millions)

After

2008  2009t0201 2011 to 201 2012 Total
Long-term debt (including interest thereon) $ 13 $ 27 $ 27 $04 $ 71
Operating leases 1kt 2.4 1.3 1.3 6.5
Talent, employment agreements and other commitments 11k 8.t 3.7 12.5 36.2
Total commitments $14: $ 13¢ % 7.7 $14:z $49:¢

Seasonality

Our operating results are not materially etifd by seasonal factors; however, our premierteVeérestleMania, historically occurred in o
fourth fiscal quarter. Due to our change in fisgaédr end, beginning in calendar year 20@réstleManiaypically occurs late in our first quar
or early in our second quarter. In addition, rexenfrom our licensing and direct sale of consummeducts, including our catalogs, magaz
and internet sites, may vary from period to perdegpending on the volume and extent of licensingaments and marketing and proma
programs entered into during any particular pedbtime, as well as the commercial success of thdianexposure of our characters and bi
The timing of these events as well as the contirin&dduction of new product offerings and revemenerating outlets can and will ca
fluctuation in quarterly revenues and earnings.

Inflation

During 2007, transition 2006 and the previous tigodl years, inflation has not had a material ¢ffacour business.



Application of Critical Accounting Policies
Accounting Policie!

We believe the following are the critical accougtipolicies used in the preparation of our finansiatements, as well as the signific
judgments and estimates affecting the applicatichese policies

. Revenue Recognition
Pay-per-view programming:

Revenues from our pay-pg@ew programming are recorded when the event edaand are based upon our initial estimate of theber o
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based atlipinary buy information received from our pay—4wew distributors. Final reconciliation
the pay-periew buys occurs within one year and any subseqa@juistments to the buys are recognized on a casib.As of December &
2007, our pay-peview accounts receivable was $15.7 million. If duitial estimate is incorrect, it can result in @igcant adjustments
revenues in subsequent years.

Home video:

Revenues from the sales of home video titles arerded when shipped by our distributor to wholesaleetailers, net of an allowance
estimated returns. The allowance for estimatedmstis based on historical information and curiedtistry trends. As of December 31, 2(
our home video returns allowance was $6.6 milllbme do not accurately predict returns, we mayehgvadjust revenues in future periods.

Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded whepeshiby our distributor to wholesalers/retailerst af an allowance for estima
returns. We estimate the allowance for newsstatame based upon our review of historical retutesand the expected performance o
current titles in relation to prior issue returtesa As of December 31, 2007, our newsstand retitogwance was $4.8 million. If we do |
accurately predict returns, we may have to adgstmues in future periods.
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o Feature films

We capitalize costs of production and acquisitiortluding production overhead, as feature film prcttbn assets. These costs
amortized to direct operating expenses in accoelavith Statement of Position 00Atcounting by Producers or Distributors of Film3he
costs for an individual film are amortized and fmdpation and residual costs are accrued in th@gton that the current perialrevenue
bear to managemestestimates of the ultimate revenue from explatgtexhibition or sale of such film over a pericat to exceed ten ye:
from the date of initial release. Management redyl@views and revises, when necessary, its utémavenue and cost estimates, which
result in a change in the rate of amortization ilwh fcosts and/or writelown of all or a portion of the unamortized costghe film to its
estimated fair value. No assurance can be givenuthi@vorable changes to revenue and cost estimatesot occur, which may result
significant writedowns affecting our results of operations and fai@ncondition. In 2007 we recorded an impairmemirge of $15.7 millio
related toThe CondemnedAs of December 31, 2007, we have approximately$illion in capitalized film production costs.

We have performed estimates of our ultimateenue for our three released projedte No Evil, The Maringnd The Condemnegdas o
December 31, 2007, as well as the capitalized dostsarious films in development, and believe mitevdown is required at this time.

o Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our receivables represent a significant portiomwf current assets. We are required to estimatedhectibility of our receivables and
establish allowances for the amount of receivatilas we estimate to be uncollectible. We base tldegvances on our historical collect
experience, the length of time our receivablesautstanding and the financial condition of indivadicustomers. Changes in the finar
condition of significant customers, either adveosepositive, could impact the amount and timingaof/ additional allowances that may
required. As of December 31, 2007, our allowancafubtful accounts was $1.4 million.

o Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordanch thié provisions of SFAS No. 108¢ccounting for Income Taxe#s such, we recognize 1
future impact of the difference between the finahstatement and tax basis of assets and liakilifis of December 31, 2007, we have $
million of net deferred tax assets on our balarftmes We record valuation allowances against dedetaix assets when management doe
believe the future tax benefits are more likelyntimat to be realized. We do not recognize the beakh tax position, for financial statem



purposes, unless the position is more likely thainte be sustained upon review by competent autesri
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accountitan8ards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Finakgabunting Standards No. 15Fair
Value Measurement{SFAS 157). SFAS 157 provides a common definitibfaw value and establishes a framework to makentleasureme
of fair value in generally accepted accounting giples more consistent and comparable. SFAS 15 ralguires expanded disclosure
provide information about the extent to which feaue is used to measure assets and liabilitiesptethods and assumptions used to me
fair value, and the effect of fair value measuresearnings. SFAS 157 is effective for us on Jandar®008. We are currently assessing
potential effect of SFAS 157 on our financial sta¢ats.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS N@, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities (SFAS 159). SFA
159 expands opportunities to use fair value measuresmienfinancial reporting and permits entities taebe to measure many finan
instruments and certain other items at fair vaBAS 159 is effective for us on January 1, 2008.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation. M8, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax&N 48). FIN 48 clarifies tr
accounting for income taxes by prescribing a minimprobability threshold that a tax position musteinigefore a financial statement benel
recognized. The minimum threshold is defined in B®as a tax position that is more likely than twobe sustained upon examination by
applicable taxing authority, including resolutiohamy related appeals or litigation processes, dasethe technical merits of the position.
tax benefit to be recognized is measured as tigedaiamount of benefit that is estimated to betgrehan fifty percent likely of being realiz
upon ultimate settlement. FIN 48 must be appliedltexisting tax positions upon initial adoptiorhe cumulative effect of applying FIN 4¢&
adoption, if any, is to be reported as an adjustrt@opening retained earnings for the year of #dopAs a result of the implementatior
FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, we recognized a $1,602ase in the liability for unrecognized income banefits, with a corresponding decre
in the opening balance of retained earnings.

30

Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the “Safe Harbr” Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Adt1995 provides a “safe harbor” for certain staats that are forwarkboking and are ni
based on historical facts. When used in this Repbe words “may,” “will,” “could,” “anticipate,” plan,” “continue,” “project,” “intend;
“estimate”, “believe”, “expect” and similar exprésss are intended to identify forward-looking stagmts, although not all forwalddeking
statements contain such words. These statemeats telour future plans, objectives, expectationsiatentions and are not historical facts
accordingly involve known and unknown risks andenteinties and other factors that may cause theabosults or the performance by u
be materially different from future results or perhance expressed or implied by such forwlaaking statements. The following factc
among others, could cause actual results to diffaterially from those contained in forwalmbking statements made in this Report, in
releases and in oral statements made by our amétubdfficers: (i) our failure to maintain or ren&ey agreements could adversely affect
ability to distribute our television and pay-pgew programming. (ii) our failure to continue tewelop creative and entertaining programs
events would likely lead to a decline in the popityaof our brand of entertainment; (iii) our faiki to retain or continue to recruit |
performers could lead to a decline in the appeauwfstorylines and the popularity of our brancenfertainment; (iv) the loss of the crea
services of Vincent K. McMahon could adversely effeur ability to create popular characters anétive storylines; (v) a decline in gene
economic conditions could adversely affect our bess; (vi) a decline in the popularity of our brasfdsports entertainment, including
result of changes in the social and political cliemaould adversely affect our business; (vii) demin the regulatory atmosphere and re
private sector initiatives could adversely affegt business; (viii) the markets in which we operate highly competitive, rapidly changing i
increasingly fragmented, and we may not be ablecimpete effectively, especially against competitoith greater financial resources
marketplace presence; (ix) we face uncertaintiss@ated with international markets; (x) we maypbehibited from promoting and conduct
our live events if we do not comply with applicabégulations; (xi) because we depend upon ourl@uielal property rights, our inability
protect those rights, or our infringement of othdrgellectual property rights, could adversely affexr business; (xii) we could inc
substantial liabilities if pending litigation isgelved unfavorably; (xiii) our insurance may not ddequate to cover liabilities resulting fr
accidents or injuries that occur during our phylsicdemanding events; (xiv) we will face a variety risks as we expand into new i
complementary businesses such as feature filmg;tixgugh his beneficial ownership of a substantiajority of our Class B common sto
our controlling stockholder, Vincent K. McMahon,ncaxercise control over our affairs, and his irgegenay conflict with the holders of «
Class A common stock; (xvi) a substantial numbeshafres will be eligible for future sale by Mr. Makbn, and the sale of those shares «
lower our stock price; and (xvii) our Class A comrgiock has a relatively small public “float”. Tferward{ooking statements speak only
of the date of this Report and undue reliance shoat be placed on these statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure®aut Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are exposéateégn currency exchange rate, interest rateeaquity price risks that could impact «
results of operations. Our foreign currency exclearage risk is minimized by maintaining minimal @etsets and liabilities in currencies o
than our functional currency.

Interest Rate Ris



We are exposed to interest rate risk related todebt and investment portfolio. Our debt consistthe mortgage related to our corpo
headquarters, which has an annual interest rate686. The fair value of this debt is not signifidgrifferent from its carrying amount.

Our investment portfolio consists primarily of ftkécncome mutual funds and municipal auction rateigges with a strong emphasis pla
on preservation of capital. In an effort to minimiaur exposure to interest rate risk, our investrpentfolio’s dollar weighted duration is I
than one year. Due to the nature of our investmantsour strategy to minimize market and interag risk, we believe that our portfc
would not be materially impacted by adverse flutares in interest rates.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Di

The information required by this item is set fanhthe Consolidated Financial Statements filed il report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accourtiaon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

We have performed an evaluation under the superviand with the participation of our managementjuiding our Chairman, Chi
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer ofetleffectiveness of our disclosure controls and gulaces, as defined under the Secul
Exchange Act of 1934. Based on that evaluation, management, including our Chairman, Chief Exeeutdfficer, and Chief Financ
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls gnocedures were effective as of December 31, 20@hsure that information required tc
disclosed by us in the reports filed or submittgdub under the Exchange Act is recorded, processedmarized and reported within the t
periods specified in the SEC's rules and formsr& heere no significant changes in our disclosumgrods and procedures during the last fi
quarter that have materially affected, or are reably likely to materially affect, our internal dool over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finarad Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingrasiditaining adequate internal control over finahporting, as such term is define«
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 186(f). Under the supervision and with the partitipa of our management, including our Chairn
Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officave conducted an evaluation of the effectiven&seur internal control over financ
reporting as of December 31, 2007 based on theetinés established imternal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis@@DSO). Our internal control over financial refagtincludes policies and procedt
that provide reasonable assurance regarding tiabitey of financial reporting and the preparatiohfinancial statements for external repor
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accegatedunting principles.

Based on the results of our evaluation, our managérooncluded that our internal control over firnahceporting was effective as
December 31, 2007. We reviewed the results of mamagt's assessment with our Audit Committee.

Management’ assessment of the effectiveness of our inteovatal over financial reporting as of December 3007 has been audited
Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registeretllipiaccounting firm, as stated in their report ghis included in this Annual Report
Form 10-K. Such report expresses an unqualifiediopion the Company’s internal control over finahceporting as of December 31, 2007.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the internal control over financégdorting of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inadasubsidiaries (the "Company") as
December 31, 2007, based on criteria establishethtarnal Control — Integrated Frameworikssued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Campsananagement is responsible for maintainingcéffe internal control over financ
reporting and for its assessment of the effectisena internal control over financial reportingclimded in the accompanyinganagemet
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportil. Our responsibility is to express an opinion oa tBompany's internal control o
financial reporting based on our au



We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadslof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8a&@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal contk@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etimaduthe design and operating effectiveness oftiratecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We believe thaaudit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supenvi, the company's principal execu
and principal financial officers, or persons penmfiorg similar functions, and effected by the compsipoard of directors, management,
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneedieg the reliability of financial reporting anbet preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally @edeaccounting principles. A company's internaitod over financial reporting includ
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihearaintenance of records that, in reasonablel gdataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypi@ide reasonable assurance that transactiongeeseded as necessary to permit prepar
of financial statements in accordance with gengatlcepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are k
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngan@ent and directors of the company; and (3) peviehsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asijjon, use, or disposition of the company's as¢leqit could have a material effect on
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tcohover financial reporting, including the posdétg of collusion or improper managemi
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected ¢imely basis. Also, projections of ¢
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoanover financial reporting to future periods aebject to the risk that the controls r
become inadequate because of changes in conditivttgt the degree of compliance with the policdeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on the criteria establishedlmternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiminthe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), the consolida
financial statements and financial statement sdeeafuthe Company as of and for the year ended Dbee 31, 2007 of the Company and
report dated March 5, 2008 expressed an unquabfiétion on those financial statements and findrste&tement schedule.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
March 5, 2008
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.
PART Il

The information required by Part Il (Item8-14) is incorporated herein by reference to ourrdiéfie proxy statement for our 2008 Ann
Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

(a) The following documents are filed as a patthig report:
1. Consolidated Financial Statements and Sche8eleindex to Consolidated Financial Statementsage -1 of this Report.

2. Exhibits:

Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiorcofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Regtior
Statement on Form-1 (No. 33:-84327)).




3.1A

3.2

3.2A

10.1

10.1A

10.1B

10.2

10.2A

10.2B

10.3

10.3A

10.4

10.4A

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate oérporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit(d) to ou
Registration Statement on Forr-8, filed July 15, 2002,

Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporated by eefsr to Exhibit 3.4 to our Registration StatemenForm S1 (No
335-84327)).

Amendment to Amended and Restated-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2(a) dur Registratic
Statement on Form-8, filed July 15, 2002

1999 Lon¢-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference xbilkit 10.1 to our Registration Statement on For-1
(No. 33:-84327)) (the“LTIP").*

Form of Option Agreement under the LTIP (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.1A to our Annual Remm Forn
1C-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2003

Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Units grdrdering 2003 under the LTIP (incorporated by refiee to Exhib
10.2B to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2003

Employment Agreement with Vincent K. McMahon, datedtober 14, 1999 (incorporated by reference toilkith0.z
to our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-84327)).*

Amendment, dated as of May 1, 2002, to Employmegre@ment with Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated bjerenc
to Exhibit 10.2A to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002

Amendment, dated June 23, 2006, to Employment Agee¢ with Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated by refece ti
Exhibit 10.2B to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 20, 2006

Booking Contract with Vincent K. McMahon, dated Fedry 15, 2000 (incorporated by reference to ExHibi3 to ou
Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2000
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Amendment, dated July 3, 2001, to Booking Contreith Vincent K. McMahon (incorporated by referertoeExhibit
10.3A to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2001

Employment Agreement with Linda E. McMahon dateddBer 14, 1999 ((incorporated by reference to ExHiB.3 tc
our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-84327)).*

Amendment, dated June 23, 2006, to Employment Ageaé with Linda E. McMahon (incorporated by referertc
Exhibit 10.4A to our Annual Report on Form-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2006

Booking Contract with Linda E. McMahon, dated Fetgul5, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhifit5 to ou
Annual Report on Form K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2000

World Wrestling Entertainment Employee Stock PusehRlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.6ur Annug
Report on Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. Management Bomlan (incorporated by reference to Appendix Ah® Prox!
Statement for the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockhdéled July 31, 2003).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 30,1208y and between Invemed Catalyst Fund, L.P. aratld
Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (incorporated by refee to Exhibit 10.10 to our Annual Report on FA&@K for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 200z

Open End Mortgage Deed, Assignment of Rents andredgreement between TSI Realty Company and Gl
Commercial Mortgage Corp. (assigned to Citicorp IRestate, Inc.), dated as of December 12, 19970(purated b
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to our Registration &tant on Form-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Promissory Note issued by TSI Realty Company to GMBommercial Mortgage Corp. (assigned to Citicoga
Estate, Inc.), dated as of December 12, 1997 (purated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to our Regigin Statement ¢
Form &1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Environmental Indemnity Agreement among TS| Re@lompany, Titan Sports Inc. and GMAC Commercial Magk
Corp. (assigned to Citicorp Real Estate, Inc.)edats of December 12, 1997 (incorporated by referém Exhibit 10.1
to our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-84327)).



10.12 Assignment of Leases and Rents between TSI Realtyp@ny and GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corp. (assigto
Citicorp Real Estate, Inc.), dated as of DecemBerl 997 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1Gd.éur Registratic
Statement on Form-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

10.13 Agreement between WW-World Wide Fund for Nature and Titan Sports, Inatedl January 20, 1994 (incorporate!
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to our Registration &tant on Form-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

10.14 Offer letter, dated March 4, 2004, between the Caamgpand John Laurinaitis (incorporated by referendéxhibit 10.1
to our Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005

10.15 Employment Agreement with Frank G. Serpe, datedcM&, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit51® ou
Annual Report on Form -K for the transition period ended December 31, 20C

10.16 Revised offer letter between the Company and MicBdeck (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@07the Currer
Report on Form-K filed March 19, 2007).’

10.17 Employment Agreement, as of May 20, 2007, betwérmn Gompany and Joel Simon (incorporated by referdc
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on For-K filed July 26, 2007).’
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10.1¢ World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. 2007 Omnibusdntive Plan, effective July 20, 2007 (incorporatgdeference
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Forr-K filed July 26, 2007).!

10.1¢ Form of Agreement for Performance Stock Units ® @ompan’s employees and officers under the Com|'s 200’
Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by refererméxhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on FornK&ied July 26
2007).*

10.2( Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Units to tbempany’s employees and officers under the Coniga2@0’
Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by refereréExhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on FornK&#Hed July 26
2007).*

21.1 List of Subsidiaries (filed herewith

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (filed herewit

31.1 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon pursuant to 8en 302 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

31.2 Certification by Linda E. McMahon pursuant to SentB02 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

31.3 Certification by Frank G. Serpe pursuant to Sec862 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

32.1 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon, Linda E. McMah, and Frank G. Serpe pursuant to Section 906adieBes-
Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

* Indicates management contract or compensatory @larrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causieddiport to be signed on its behalt
the undersigned, thereto duly authorized.

W ORLD W RESTLING E NTERTAINMENT, | NC.
(Registrant)

Dated: March 5, 2008 By: /S/ VINCENT K. MCMAHON
Vincent K. McMahon

Chairman of the Board of Directors



(co-principal executive officer)

Dated: March 5, 2008 By: /S/ LINDA E. MCMAHON
Linda E. McMahon

Chief Executive Officer

(co-principal executive officer)

Dated: March 5, 2008 By: /sl FRANK G. SERPE
Frank G. Serpe

Chief Financial Officer

(principal financial and accounting officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belptihe following persons on behall
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title or Capacity Date
/s/ VINCENTK. M cM AHON Chairman of the Board of Directo March 5, 200¢
Vincent K. McMahon (co-principal executive officer
/s/ LINDA E. M cM AHON Chief Executive Officer and Directi March 5, 200¢
Linda E. McMahon (cc-principal executive officer
/s/ M ICHAEL SILECK Chief Operating Officer and Direct: March 5, 200¢
Michael Sileck
/s/ L oweLL P. WEICKERJr. Director March 5, 200¢
Lowell P. Weicker Jr.
/s/ DAvID K ENIN Director March 5, 200¢
David Kenin
/s/ JOSEPHP ERKINS Director March 5, 200¢
Joseph Perkins
/s/ M ICHAEL B. SoLOMON Director March 5, 200¢
Michael B. Solomon
/s ROBERTA. B oWMAN Director March 5, 200¢
Robert A. Bowman
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inad anbsidiaries (the "Company") as
December 31, 2007, December 31, 2006 and April2806 and the related consolidated statements afimiec stockholders' equity &
comprehensive income, and cash flows for the yede@& December 31, 2007, the eight month perioddeBaeember 31, 2006, and for eac
the two years in the period ended April 30, 2006r Budits also included the financial statemenedale listed in the Index at Item 15. Th
financial statements and financial statement sdeedre the responsibility of the Company's managerm@ur responsibility is to express
opinion on these financial statements and finarsteEtement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaflo(United States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obt@asonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tiliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements. An &
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenmemtekhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetaepresent fairly, in all material respects, tiwarcial position of World Wrestlir
Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of DecerBthe2007, December 31, 2006 and April 30, 20086, the results of their operations i
their cash flows for the year ended December 307 2the eight month period ended December 31, 20@6for each of the two years in
period ended April 30, 2006, in conformity with acoting principles generally accepted in the Uni&tdtes of America. Also, in our opini
such financial statement schedule, when consideresglation to the basic consolidated financiatestgents taken as a whole, presents fairl
all material respects, the information set forthréin.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), the Compar
internal control over financial reporting as of Baetber 31, 2007, based on the criteria establishéatérnal Control—ntegrated Framewol
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohshe Treadway Commission and our report datedché, 2008 expressed
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohtwver financial reporting.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Stamford, Connecticut

March 5, 2008
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(dollars and shares in thousands, except per sladag

For the eight

For the year ende( months endec For the years ended:
December 31, December 31 April 30, April 30,
2007 2006 2006 2005
Net revenue $ 485,65 $ 262,937 $ 400,05 $ 366,43
Cost of revenue 298,76¢ 157,09 227,17 213,28¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 109,13 61,04: 91,86 90,97
Depreciation and amortizatic 9,31¢ 5,55 10,47: 11,87«

Operating incom 68,43: 39,24 70,54( 50,29




Investment income, ni 9,11( 6,44( 7,39( 5,36
Interest expens 552 421 587 642
Other (expense) income, r (517) 884 558 1,34¢
Income before income tax 76,47¢ 46,14¢ 77,89¢ 56,35¢
Provision for income taxe 24,331 14,52¢ 30,88¢ 18,58
Income from continuing operatiol 52,13% 31,61% 47,017 37,77¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxezge of $2:
and $737 for fiscal 2006 and 2005, respecti — — 35 1,36¢
Net income 52,137 $ 31,617 $ 47,047 $ 39,147
Earnings per shar- Basic:

Continuing operations 0.72 $ 04t $ 066 $ 0.5

Discontinued operations — — — 0.0Z

Net income 0.7: $ 0.4t $ 0.6¢ $ 0.57
Earnings per shar- Diluted:

Continuing operations 0.7z $ 0.44 $ 067 $ 0.5¢

Discontinued operations — — — 0.0z

Net income 0.7z $ 044 $ 067 $ 0.5¢
Shares used in per share calculatis

Basic 71,61¢ 70,89¢ 69,36 68,61"

Diluted 72,30: 71,59¢ 70,17¢ 69,37¢

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkeStents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
As of:
December 31 December 31 April 30,
2007 2006 2006
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 13580¢ $ 86,267 $ 175,20

Short-term investments 130,54¢ 161,88t 105,65!

Accounts receivable, net 56,59 52,11 67,77"

Inventory, net 4,717 3,04¢ 1,78¢

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 20,05: 13,33¢ 11,14(

Assets of discontinued operations — 46¢ 457

Total current assets 347,72 317,12: 362,01¢
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NE 77,77 67,97: 67,57(
FEATURE FILM PRODUCTION ASSET! 21,89( 53,56( 36,09
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET 2,30z 3,32¢ 1,461
OTHER ASSETS 20,37: 11,30« 12,247
TOTAL ASSETS $ 470,05t $ 453,28! $ 479,39
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Current portion of long-term debt $ 927 $ 86z $ 817

Accounts payable 21,95 14,90¢ 19,82¢

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 30,68¢ 25,53¢ 36,01°

Deferred income 18,01: 20,16¢ 19,87«

Liabilities of discontinued operations — 30z 29/




Total current liabilities 71,574 61,77 76,82¢
LONG-TERM DEBT 4,87¢ 5,80( 6,381
NON-CURRENT TAX LIABILITY 10,227 — —
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY:

Class A common stock: ($.01 par value; 180,000€)G0es authorized;

24,074,655, 23,283,916 and 22,843,435 shares issuefiDecember 31,

2007 and 2006, and April 30, 2006, respectively) 241 233 22¢
Class B common stock: ($.01 par value; 60,000,0@0es authorized;

47,713,563 shares issued as of December 31, 2@DZ00®, and April 30,

2006, respectively) A77 AT 477
Additional paid-in capital 301,32¢ 286,98! 277,69:
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,89¢ 66€ 35¢
Retained earnings 78,43¢ 97,35( 117,42°

Total stockholders’ equity 383,38 385,71: 396,18:
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $ 470,05¢ $ 453,28! $ 479,39(

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeStents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(dollars and shares in thousands)xxx
Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Stock Paid - in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income Earnings Total
Balance, April 30, 2004 68,43. $ 684 $250,77% % (1,120 $102,76t $353,10!
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — — 39,141 39,141
Translation adjustment — — — 932 — 932
Unrealized holding loss, net of tax — — — (1,369 — (1,369
Reclassification adjustment for losses

realized in net income, net of tax — — — 644 — 644
Total comprehensive incon 39,35¢
Stock issuances (repurchases), 37€ 4 (1,195 — — (1,190
Exercise of stock optior 74 1 704 — — 70E
Tax benefit from exercise of stock optic — — 81 — — 81
Dividends paic — — 267 — (20,87¢) (20,609
Stock compensation cos — — 4,08¢ — — 4,084
Balance, April 30, 200% 68,88 68¢ 254,71t (909) 121,03 375,53:
Comprehensive incom:

Net income — — — — 47,045 47,04,
Translation adjustment — — — 1,32( — 1,32(
Unrealized holding loss, net of tax — — — (1,185 — (1,185
Reclassification adjustment for losses

realized in net income, net of tax — — — 1,12¢ — 1,12¢
Total comprehensive incon 48,31(
Stock issuances (repurchases), 284 3 (814) — — (811
Exercise of stock optior 1,392 14 16,80¢ — — 16,82:
Tax benefit from exercise of stock optic — — 1,69t — — 1,69



Dividends paic
Stock compensation cos
Balance, April 30, 200€
Comprehensive incom:
Net income
Translation adjustment
Unrealized holding loss, net of tax
Reclassification adjustment for losses
realized in net income, net of tax
Total comprehensive incon
Stock issuances (repurchases),
Exercise of stock optior
Excess tax benefits from st-based paymet
arrangements
Dividends paic
Stock compensation cos
Balance, December 31, 20C
Comprehensive incom:
Net income
Translation adjustment
Unrealized holding gain, net of tax
Reclassification adjustment for losses
realized in net income, net of tax
Total comprehensive incon
Stock issuances (repurchases),
Exercise of stock optior
Excess tax benefits from st-based paymet
arrangements
Dividends paic
Adjustment to adopt FIN 4
Stock compensation cos
Balance, December 31, 20C

— — 59z — (50,659) (50,069

_ _ 4,69¢ — — 4,69¢
70,55 70€ 277,69: 35E 117,42° 396,18
— — — — 31,615 31,615

— — — 46€ — 46€

— — — (220 — (220

— — — 65 — 65
31,92¢

14z 1 (61€) — — (615)
29¢ 3 3,67¢ — — 3,67¢
_ — 71z — — 712

— — 677 — (51,699 (51,01

— — 4,84: — — 4,84:
70,99¢ 71C 286,98! 66€ 97,35( 385,71
— — — — 52,13} 52,13}

— — — 963 — 963

— — — 51 — 51

_ _ _ 1,21« — 1,214
54,36

31€ 3 (1,279 — (1,277
472 5 6,16¢ — 6,17(C
_ — 841 — — 841

— — 882 — (69,54¢) (68,664

— — — — (1,502 (1,502

— — 7,73( — — 7,73(C
71,78 $ 71¢ $301,32¢ $ 289/ $ 78,43¢ $383,38(

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:

Amortization of feature film production assets
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax

Depreciation and amortization

Realized losses on sales of investments
Amortization of investment income
Stock compensation costs

For the year ende(

For the eight
months ende(

For the years endec

December 31 December 31 April 30, April 30,
2007 2006 2006 2005

$ 52,137 $ 31,617 $ 47,047 $ 39,147

29,06: — — —

— — (35) (1,369

9,31¢ 5,557 10,47: 11,87¢

1,95¢ 10& 1,82( 1,03¢

(497) (329) (1,702 (424)

1,771 4,84: 4,694 4,08¢



Unrealized loss (gain) on revaluation of warrants 1,17¢ (839 (1,479 (714)

Provision for doubtful accounts 47 (1,574 494 655
Provision for inventory obsolescence 1,03% 1,42¢ 1,894 1,54¢
(Benefit) Provision for deferred income taxes (7,42)) 2,44% (1,667) 1,19(
Excess tax benefits from stock-based payment aeraagts (841) (712) — —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (4,53)) 17,23] (6,36¢) 38t
Inventory (2,704 (2,689 (2,625 (1,749
Prepaid expenses and other assets 8,68¢ (2,764 (2,659 51¢
Feature film production assets (1,839 (17,46¢) (7,329 (28,34()
Accounts payable 7,042 (4,917 4,15¢ 2,552
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (599) (20,279 20,84¢ (5,902
Deferred income (1,667) 621 (478) (2,176
Net cash provided by continuing operations 98,16: 22,28¢ 67,102 22,32(
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued opanati — — 162 (5,830
Net cash provided by operating activities 98,16: 22,28¢ 67,264 16,49(
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment (18,159 (5,099 (9,376 (5,060
Purchase of other assets (363) (2,726) (8871) (195
Purchases of short-term investments (211,36¢) (77,436) (53,765 (61,477
Proceeds from sales or maturities of short-ternestments 242,88t 20,85( 148,90¢ 82,55!
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operation 13,00¢ (64,41 84,88¢ 15,821
Net cash used in discontinued operations — — — —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 13,00¢ (64,41) 84,88¢ 15,821
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of long-term debt (860) (537 (757) (700
Issuance of stock, net 882 35C 48< 49¢€
Dividends paid (68,664 (51,019 (50,064 (24,716)
Net proceeds from exercise of stock options 6,17C 3,67¢ 16,82¢ 704
Excess tax benefit from stock-based payment arraages 841 712 — —
Net cash used in continuing operations (61,63)) (46,819 (33,519 (24,216
Net cash provided by discontinued operations — — — —
Net cash used in financing activities (61,63)) (46,819 (33,519 (24,216
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 49,53¢ (88,93¢) 118,63! 8,101
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAF 86,261 175,20: 56,56¢ 48,467
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAF $ 135,80 $ 86,260 $175200 $ 56,56¢
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for income taxes, ne¢foinds $ 2429¢ $ 19,53: $ 19,06( $ 17,46«
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 552 % 421 % 587 $ 64z

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financitegtents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzsg d

1. Basis of Presentation and Business Description

The accompanying consolidated financial statemmaiside the accounts of World Wrestling Entertaimtpénc., and our subsidiaries.
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, “WWHEefers to World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. atsl subsidiaries, unless the context other
requires. References to “we,” “us,” “our” and thedmpany”refer to WWE and its subsidiaries. We are an irgesgt media and entertainm
company, principally engaged in the developmerddpction and marketing of television and pay-piew event programming and live eve
and the licensing and sale of consumer productsiieg our World Wrestling Entertainment brands.r©@perations are organized around



principal activities:
Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te levents, sales of merchandise at these live evevision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feesiéwing our pay-per-view and video on demandypranming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the direct saleSMWE produced home videos and magazine publishirtrayalties or license fe
related to various WWE themed products such aovi@enes, toys and books.

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisitigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and macbihtent.

WWE Films

e Revenues consist of our share of receipts frondisteibution of filmed entertainment featuring dsuperstars. Two feature films w
released in 2006 and one film was released in 206 participate in revenues generated under thghdifon of the films through ¢
media after the print and advertising and distidrutcosts incurred by our distributors have beamuped and the results have t
reported to us.

All significant intercompany transactions and bakshave been eliminated.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates— The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhi@ United Statt
requires our management to make estimates and ptsom that affect the reported amounts of assets l@bilities and disclosures
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effthancial statements and the reported amountevaue and expenses during the repc
period. Actual results could differ from those ewsties.

Fiscal Period— In June 2006, the Board of Directors elected tongkaour historical fiscal year end of April 30 tocalendar bas
beginning with calendar 2007. We therefore esthblisan eight month transition period from May 10@@®@hrough December 31, 2006. 1
period is referred to herein as “transition 2006™® 2006” or the “transition period”Prior to the transition period, our fiscal quartensre
thirteenweek periods that ended on the thirteenth Fridaghénquarter, with the exception of our fourth degrwhich always ended on A
30.

Cash and Equivalents- Cash and equivalents include cash on deposit inn@tg deposit accounts and investments in moneskei
accounts.

Short-term Investments- We classify all of our short-term investmentsaaailable-for-sale securities. Such sherm investments cons
primarily of mutual funds and of municipal auctiosite securities, which are stated at fair valugh winrealized gains and losses on
securities reflected, net of tax, as other comprsive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity. Realdizgains and losses on shienta
investments are included in earnings and are diriging the specific identification method for detaing the cost of securities sold. It is
intent to maintain a liquid portfolio to take adtage of investment opportunities; therefore, atiusities are considered to be available$ate
and are classified as current assets.

WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzsg d

Accounts Receivable- Accounts receivable relate principally to amouwtig to us from pay-peariew providers and television networks
pay-perview presentations and television programming, eepely, and balances due from the sale of hondeos and magazines. (
accounts receivable represent a significant porioour current assets. We are required to estittetecollectibility of our receivables anc
establish allowances for the amount of accountsivable that we estimate to be uncollectible. Wsebthese allowances on our histol
collection experience, the length of time our actsueceivable are outstanding and the financiatlitmn of individual customers. Accou



receivable are charged off when considered unddilec Activity in the allowance for doubtful accots is as follows:

Balance at Charged to Balance at
beginning costs and Writeeffs and end of
of period expenses other period
2007 $ 2,08 $ 47  $ (7739 $ 1,35¢
Transition 200¢ $ 3740 $ (1579 $ 82) $ 2,08¢
2006 $ 3287 % 494 $ 41 $ 3,74
2005 $ 2612 $ 67t $ — $ 3,28i

Inventory— Inventory consists of merchandise sold on a disat#s basis, and videotapes and DVDs, which adckthobugh wholesa
distributors and retailers. Substantially all of cwentory is comprised of finished goods. Invewtis stated at the lower of cost or market.
valuation of our inventories requires managemenmntke market estimates assessing the quantitiegshendrices at which we believe
inventory can be sold.

Feature Films— Feature films are recorded at the cost of prodociitcluding production overhead. These costs foindividual film will
be amortized in the proportion that revenues beamanagemerd’ estimates of the ultimate revenue expected taebegnized fror
exploitation, exhibition or sale of such film. Mayement regularly reviews and when necessary re\itsagitimate revenue and cost estim:
which may result in a change in the rate of amatiiin of film costs and/or writdewn of all or a portion of the unamortized codtthe film tc
its estimated fair value.

Property and Equipment— Property and equipment are stated at historicat t&ss accumulated depreciation and amortize
Depreciation and amortization are computed onagsttline basis over the estimated useful lives of tesets or, when applicable, the life
the lease, whichever is shorter. Vehicles and eneiyt are depreciated based on estimated usefd limeying from three to five yea
Buildings and related improvements are deprecibtesd on estimated useful lives varying from fivéhirty-nine years. Our corporate airc
is depreciated over ten years on a straligiet-basis less an estimated residual value of0&B,Blanned major maintenance activities relat
the corporate aircraft are capitalized and amattiaeer five years, which is the estimated periotl time next overhaul.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets We periodically evaluate the carrying amountarfgived assets when events and circumstances w
such a review.

Income Taxes— We account for income taxes in accordance wighpttovisions of Statement of Financial Accountirigrfards (“SFASY’
No. 109,Accounting for Income TaxeOur deferred provision was determined under gsetaand liability method. Under this method,
deferred assets and liabilities are recognizeddasedifferences between the financial statemedtiacome tax basis of assets and liabil
using presently enacted tax rates. Valuation alfmea are established to reduce deferred tax assatsounts management believes are |
likely than not to be realized. We consider estedatuture taxable income and ongoing tax plannimgteggies in assessing the neec
valuation allowances. We also provide reserves wherbelieve that it is not probable that a tax fiosiwe have taken will be sustaine
challenged.

Revenue Recognitior- Revenues are generally recognized when productshépped or as services are performed. However taltiee
nature of several of our business lines, theradditional steps in the revenue recognition procsslescribed below.

e Pay-per-view programming:

Revenues from our pay-péew programming are recorded when the event eddadnd are based upon our initial estimate of theber o
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based @tfipinary buy information received from our pay-seew distributors.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per sl d

Final reconciliation of the pay-petew buys generally occurs within one year and amlgsequent adjustments to the buys are recogng
new information is received.

e Television advertising:

Revenues from the sale of television advertising r@corded when the commercial airs within our progning and are based u



contractual amounts previously established withamwertisers. These contractual amounts are typibaked on the advertisement reachi
desired number of viewers.

e Sponsorships:

Through our sponsorship packages, we offer adeestia full range of our promotional vehicles, imthg internet and print advertisii
arena signage, oai¥ announcements and special appearances by parssars. We follow the guidance of Emerging Isstesk Force (EITF
Issue 00-21Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverablesnd assign the total sponsorship revenues todhieus elements contair
within a sponsorship package based on their relatair values. Our relative fair values for the sparship elements are based upi
combination of historical prices and current adseryy market conditions. Revenue from these packagaecognized as each elemel
delivered.

e Licensing:

Licensing revenues are recognized upon receipbtié¢e by the individual licensees as to license fedge. If we receive licensing advan
such payments are deferred and recognized as inasrearned.

e Home video:

Revenues from the sales of home video titles arerded when shipped by our distributor to wholesaletailers, net of an allowance
estimated returns. The allowance for estimatedmstis based on historical information and curiedustry trends.

e Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded whemd#wazine is shipped, net of an allowance for egtoh returns. We estimate
allowance for newsstand returns based upon ouewesf historical returns rates and the expectetbpeance of our current titles in relatior
prior issue return rates.

Advertising Expense- Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, eXoeptosts related to the development of a majorroencial o
media campaign which are expensed in the periethioh the commercial or campaign is first presented

Foreign Currency Translatior— For translation of the financial statements of @anadian and United Kingdom subsidiaries, we
determined that the Canadian Dollar and the U.Kunlp respectively, are the functional currenciessess and liabilities are translated at
yea-end exchange rate, and income statement accoumtsraarslated at average exchange rates for the yéwar resulting translatic
adjustments are recorded in accumulated other cgmepsive income, a component of stockholdeggiity. Foreign currency transactions
recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at tms#etion date.

Stock-Based Compensatier We adopted SFAS No 123(Rphare-Based PaymetSFAS 123(R)), which revises SFAS 123
supersedes APB 25, on May 1, 2006. SFAS 123(R)iresjthat new, modified and unvested shaaised payment transactions with employ
such as stock options and restricted stock, begrézed in the financial statements based on tlaéirvialue and recognized as compensi
expense over the vesting period. We adopted SFAfR)A1sing the modified prospective method. Unté transition method, compensai
cost recognized in the current period includes amwof: (a) compensation cost of all share basear@svgranted to employees prior to,
unvested as of, May 1, 2006, based on grant datevditue estimated in accordance with the origipedvisions of SFAS 123, and
compensation cost for all stock based awards gilantbsequent to May 1, 2006, based on the graeffdiatvalue estimated in accordance
the new provisions of SFAS 123(R). In accordand wie modified prospective method, results fooipgeriods have not been restated.
Note 13) For all periods presented, restrictedkstott and performance stock unit grants are rembiat fair value as of the issuance date,
the resulting compensation cost recorded over ¢iséing period.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzsg d

In the fiscal years ended April 30, 2006 and 200&,accounted for stock options issued to employseyy the intrinsic value method
prescribed under Accounting Principles Board Opinido 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employee§'/APB 25") and relate
interpretations. Under this method, no compensatigrense was recognized when the number of sheaeted is known and the exercise p
of the stock option is equal to or greater than rtiterket price of our stock on the grant date. Stogtions issued to noamployees we
accounted for at fair value at the issuance date.followed the disclosure-only provisions of SFA®.N48, Accounting for StocBase!
Compensation — Transition and Disclosyrand SFAS No. 123Accounting for Stock-Based CompensatioBFAS Nos. 148 and 1
encouraged, but did not require, companies to aald@t value based method for determining expeelsged to stoc-based compensatio



The following table provides relevant informatiosita reported results for the fiscal years endedl 8, 2006 and 2005 under our intrir
value method of accounting for stock options witip@emental information as if the fair value recitign provisions of SFAS No. 123 h
been applied:

2006 2005
Reported income from continuing operations $47,01: $37,77¢
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expenssdied|in

reported income from continuing operations, naketdted tax effects 2,91( 2,54z
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioaresep

determined under fair value based method for adlrde; net of

related tax effects (3,74) (4,125
Pro forma income from continuing operations $46,18. $36,19¢
Reported basic earnings from continuing operatfmrscommon share $ 06¢& $ 0.5t
Pro forma basic earnings from continuing operatjpgrscommon share $ 067 $ 0.52
Reported diluted earnings from continuing operatipar common share $ 067 $ 0.54
Pro forma diluted earnings from continuing openagiper common share $ 066 $ 0.5z

Derivative Instruments— We hold warrants received from certain publiclyded companies with whom we have licensing or diistior
agreements. Warrants received from our licensegsedevision programming distributors were inityatecorded at their estimated fair value
the date of grant using the Bla8choles option pricing model. That amount was medras deferred revenue and is amortized into tipg
income over the life of the related agreementsgustnaightline amortization. For 2007, transition 2006, fis2A06 and 2005, we recorc
revenues of $493, $329, $493 and $493, respectikelbted to the amortization of deferred reveraseiiting from the receipt of such warra
Subsequent to receipt, the warrants are adjustéitbioestimated fair value each quarter, with geanin fair value included in other income.

Intangible Assets— Our intangible assets consist of the cost of aeguiiim libraries which are amortized over threangeand acquire
trademarks and trade names which are amortizedtbres to six years. To the extent capitalized,intangible assets are being amortized
their estimated useful lives based on the periedattsets are expected to contribute to our casls.fld/e perform impairment tests annu
and whenever events or circumstances indicatartteatgible assets might be impaired.

Earnings Per Share— We present both basic and diluted earnings peeqli?S) amounts. Basic EPS is calculated by digidigt incom
by the weighted average number of common sharedamaling during the year. Diluted EPS is based upenweighted average numbe
common and common equivalent shares outstandiriggitire year which is calculated using the treastiogk method (see Note 3). Comr
equivalent shares are excluded from the computatigreriods in which they have an adtiutive effect. Stock options for which the exee
price exceeds the average market price over thedare anti-dilutive and, accordingly, are exclddieom the calculation.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In September 2006, the Financial Accountiten8ards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 1=y Value Measuremen{SFAS 157). SFA
157 provides a common definition of fair value agstablishes a framework to make the measuremefdirof’alue in generally accepi
accounting principles more consistent and comparé&fAS 157 also requires expanded disclosuremtade information about the extent
which fair value is used to measure assets anditiedy the methods and assumptions used to medaurvalue, and the effect of fair va
measures on earnings. SFAS 157 is effective farudanuary 1, 2008. We are currently assessingdtential effect of SFAS 157 on «
financial statements.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, Hdie Value Option for Financial Assets and Finahtiabilities (SFAS 159). SFA
159 expands opportunities to use fair value measemés in financial reporting and permits entitieschoose to measure many finar
instruments and certain other items at fair vaBfeAS 159 is effective for us on January 1, 2008.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpiieta No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an fiptetation of FAS
Statement No. 109IN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for incertaxes by prescribing a minimum probability thidithat a tax positic
must meet before a financial statement benefitgé®gnized. The minimum threshold is defined in BBas a tax position that is more lik
than not to be sustained upon examination by tipdicgble taxing authority, including resolution arfiy related appeals or litigation proces
based on the technical merits of the position. fRixebenefit to be recognized is measured as tigesaamount of benefit that is estimated t



greater than fifty percent likely of being realizagon ultimate settlement. FIN 48 must be appl@alt existing tax positions upon init
adoption. The cumulative effect of applying FIN @8adoption is to be reported as an adjustmenpémiag retained earnings for the yee
adoption. As a result of the implementation of FBl on January 1, 2007, we recognized a $1,5024aserg the liability for unrecognize
income tax benefits, with a corresponding decréasige opening balance of retained earnings.

3. Earnings Per Share

For purposes of calculating basic and dileachings per share, we used the following weightetage common shares outstanding:

2007 T 2006 2006 2005
Basic 71,616,212 70,898,62 69,360,85 68,617,36
Diluted 72,301,21 71,596,23 70,175,85  69,376,28
Dilutive effect of outstanding optior 209,57¢ 289,44. 170,18t 120,86t
Dilutive effect of restricted stock uni 474,02! 406,48:¢ 644,81 638,05(
Dilutive effect of employee share purchase 1,48¢ 1,68¢ — —]
Anti-dilutive outstanding options, end of ye 174,40( 277,00( 306,20( 2,785,001

4. Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets consist principally of acediwrestling based film libraries, trademarks aadlé names. The cost of film librar
acquired during 2007, transition 2006, fiscal 2@d@l fiscal 2005 was approximately $363, $1,678,1$88d $195, respectively. The cos
trademarks and trade names acquired during trans2006 and fiscal 2005 were $1,048 and $160, ctispe/. We did not purchase &
trademarks and trade names in 2007 or fiscal 2006intangible assets consisted of the following:

December 31, 2007

Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Amount Amortization Amount
Film libraries $ 7661 $ (6,009 $ 1,66:
Trademarks and trade nar 3,70¢ (3,06¢) 64C

$11,37F §$ (9,079 $ 2,30

December 31, 200!

Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Amount Amortization Amount
Film libraries $ 730¢ $ (507) $ 2,22}
Trademarks and trade nar 3,70¢ (2,607 1,101

$110L: $ (7.68) $ 3,32
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April 30, 2006
Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated ~ Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Film libraries $ 5626 $ (4,579 $ 1,05:
Trademarks and trade names 2,66( (2,25)) 40¢

$ 8,28¢ $ (6,825 $ 1,461

Amortization expense recorded for 2007, transi#0A6, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 was $1,389, $829028 and $2,079, respective



The following table presents estimated future aipatibn expense:

For the year ending December 31, 2008 $1,327
For the year ending December 31, 2009 91¢
For the year ending December 31, 2010 58
Total $2,30:

5. Investments
Short-term investments consisted of the following:

December 31, 2007

Unrealized
Holding
Amortized Gain Fair
Cost (Loss) Value
Fixed income mutual funds and other $ 54,17 $ (962) $ 53,21
Municipal auction rate securities 77,33t — 77,33
Total $131,51( $ (962) $ 130,54

The unrealized holding loss of $962 at Decembe2B0y consisted of gross losses of $1,144 and ghi$$82.

December 31, 2006

Unrealized
Holding
Amortized Gain Fair
Cost (Loss) Value
Fixed income mutual funds and other $ 89,99C $(3,10) $ 86,88¢
Municipal auction rate securities 75,00( — 75,00(
Total $164,99( $(3,10) $161,88!

The unrealized holding loss of $3,101 at Decemlie2806 consisted of gross losses of $3,188 ans gdi$87.

April 30, 2006
Unrealized
Holding

Amortized Gain Fair

Cost (Loss) Value
Fixed income mutual funds and other $ 90,65¢ $(2,849 $ 87,81
United States Treasury Notes 17,85( (6 17,84«
Total $108,50¢ $(2,859) $ 105,65!

The unrealized holding loss of $2,854 at April 3006 consisted of gross losses of $2,907 and gai$S3.
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Management deems investments to be impaiteehva decline in fair value is judged to be otlemtemporary. If the cost of |
investment exceeds its fair value, we evaluate,raputher factors, general market conditions, thetitn and extent to which the fair valu
less than cost, as well as the intent and abditydld the investmen



Subsequent to December 31, 2007, we sold approgiyn®87,135 in municipal auction rate securitieewdver, starting on February
2008, we experienced difficulty in selling additédrsecurities due to the failure of the auction haism which provides liquidity to the
securities. The securities for which auctions h&aiked will continue to accrue interest and be Bunetd every 35 days until the auct
succeeds, the issuer calls the securities, or riegyre. Accordingly, there may be no effective naedsm for selling these securities anc
may own longterm securities. As of February 22, 2008, the Camigead approximately $40,200 of auction rate séiesrand at this time v
do not believe such securities are impaired orttiafailure of the auction mechanism will have @enial impact on our liquidity.

In addition to the shoterm investments described above, we also holdantgmwhich we received from certain publicly tradednpanie
with whom we have licensing or distribution agreetseThe estimated fair value of these warrantsrdened using the Blac&choles mode
was $4,158, $5,336 and $4,497 as of December 37, ecember 31, 2006 and April 30, 2006, respelstivand is included in other non-
current assets. We recognized mark to market adgras of $(1,178), $839, $1,474, and $714 durin@72@ransition 2006, fiscal 2006 &
2005, respectively, relating to these warrantsctviis included in other (expense) income.

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31, April 30,

2007 2006 2006
Land, buildings and improvements $ 6064 $ 56,082 $ 55095
Equipment 57,60¢ 45,75: 44,78¢
Corporate aircraft 20,82¢ 20,82¢ 20,71(
Vehicles 634 634 51¢
139,71: 123,29¢ 121,97:
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (61,94)) (55,32) (54,400
Total $ 77,777 % 6797. $ 67,57(

Depreciation expense was $7,930, $4,698, $8,44489/7®5 in 2007, transition 2006, fiscal 2006 anddl 2005, respectively.
7. Feature Film Production Assets
Feature film production assets are summarized s

December 31, December 31, April 30,

2007 2006 2006
Feature film productions:
In release $ 2046¢ $ 34100 $ —
Completed but not released — 18,55¢ 33,74
In production 311 — 1,70z
In development 1,11( 89¢ 64¢
Total $ 21,89 $ 53,56( $36,09¢

We released our feature fililne Condemneith April, 2007. The film achieved approximately @0 in gross domestic box office recei
which was short of the Compayéxpectations. As a result of this performance , Gbmpany recorded an asset impairment charge56&:
in the second quartelthe Condemnewas released domestically on DVD in September, 28@Y has performed iime with our update
expectations.
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In Transition 2006 we released two featulradj See No Eviand The Marine. See No Evihchieved more than $15,000 in gross dom
box office receipts and was released domesticalllpuD in November, 2006The Marine has achieved more than $18,000 in gross dor
box office receipts and was released domesticallip@D in January 200



We estimate that approximately 53% of “Ireedde”film production assets will be amortized over tlexintwelve months. Approximate
80% of “In release” film production assets areraated to be amortized over the following three gear

Unamortized feature film production assets areuatad for impairment each reporting period. If #€stimated revenue is not sufficien
recover the unamortized asset, the asset will bgewrdown to fair value. As stated above, durihg second quarter we recorded an
impairment charge of $15,662 to cost of revenudschvreflected our expectations related to the grarnce ofThe Condemned As of
December 31, 2007, we do not believe any additioagpitalized assets included in Feature Film Prodadssets are impaired.

In addition to the capitalized production costatedl for the three released films, we have alsdtaleged certain script development cc
for various other film projects. Capitalized scrigvelopment costs are reviewed periodically fopaimment if, and when, a project is deel
to be abandoned. Approximately $367, $0, $197 a8 ®f previously capitalized development costsenstpensed for abandoned projec
2007, transition 2006, fiscal 2006 and 2005, retyely.

8. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisteth@following:

December 31  December 31 April 30,

2007 2006 2006
Accrued pa-pel-view event cost $ 495¢ $ 5228 $ 7,50(
Accrued income taxe — — 7,41¢
Accrued payroll related cos 7,73 5,40: 9,17¢
Accrued legal and professional fe 1,84¢ 2,051 3,25¢
Accrued home video production and distribut 5,19¢ 5,14¢ 3,121
Accrued othe 10,94 7,70¢ 5,54¢
Total $ 30,68 $ 2553t $ 36,01

Accrued other includes accruals for our publishitedevision, and licensing business activities, exafi which exceeds 5% of curr
liabilities.

9. Debt

In 1997, we entered into a mortgage loan agreemnedér which we borrowed $12,000 at an annual istere of 7.6% with a matur
date of December 31, 2013. Principal and intenestabe paid in 180 monthly installments of apfmmately $112. The loan is collateralized
our executive offices and television studio in Sianeh, Connecticut.

As of December 31, 2007 the scheduled principaysnts under our mortgage obligation were asvi@io

For the year ending December 31, 2! $ 927
For the year ending December 31, 2! 1,00z
For the year ending December 31, 2 1,08
For the year ending December 31, 2! 1,16¢
For the year ending December 31, 2! 1,262
Thereaftel 36C
Total $ 5,80:
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10. Income Taxes

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpiieta No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an riptetation of FASI
Statement No. 10$IN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for incertaxes by prescribing a minimum probability thiddithat a tax positic
must meet before a financial statement benefiéé®gnized. As a result of the implementation of BBon January 1, 2007, we recogniz
$1,502 increase in the liability for unrecognizeddme tax benefits, with a corresponding decreasieei opening balance of retained earnil



At the adoption date of January 1, 2007, we hadGiB4($10,382 net of federal benefit) of unrecogditax benefits, all of which wot
affect our effective tax rate if recognized. At Batber 31, 2007 we have $13,130 ($8,765 net of & thenefit) of unrecognized tax benefits.

We recognize potential accrued interest and pesafttlated to uncertain tax positions in income éagense. We have approxima
$3,589 of accrued interest related to uncertairptssitions as of December 31, 2007.

We file income tax returns in the U.S., variougesteand various foreign jurisdictions. With few egtions, we are subject to income
examinations by tax authorities for years on oerapril 30, 2004. Based upon the expiration ofigts of limitations in several jurisdictio
the Company believes it is reasonably possible tthattotal amount of previously unrecognized tardjits may decrease by approxima
$2,910 within 12 months of December 31, 2007.

For 2007, transition 2006, fiscal 2006, and 2005nxeee taxed on our income from continuing operatiahan effective tax rate of 31.¢
31.5%, 39.6% and 33.0%, respectively. Our incomeptavision related to our income from continuingeecations for 2007, transition 20
fiscal 2006, and 2005 was $24,337, $14,529, $30a884$18,581, respectively, and included fedetatlesand foreign taxes.

The components of our tax provision from continuipgrations were as follows:

2007 T 2006 2006 2005
Current:
Federal $27,99¢ $1151c $22,59¢ $10,44:
State and local 3,70¢ 27¢ 7,232 1,62
Foreign 57 29t 2,71¢ 5,32t
Deferred:
Federal (6,729 2,167 (2,139 2,18¢
State and local (702) 27t 47¢ (999
Foreign — — — —
Total $24,33° $14,52¢ $30,88: $18,58:

The income tax provision allocated to continuingi@ions and discontinued operations was as follows

2007 T 2006 2006 2005
Provision for income taxe- continuing operation $24,337 $14,52¢ $30,88: $18,58:
Provision for income taxe- discontinued operatior — — 23 737
Total allocated provision for income tax $24,33 $14,52¢ $30,90° $19,31¢
Components of income before income taxes are ksl
2007 T 2006 2006 2005
u.s. $76,20f $45,801 $77,357 $54,87¢
International subsidiarie 26¢ 34¢ 53¢ 1,481
Income before income tax $76,47: $46,14¢ $77,89¢ $56,35¢

The following sets forth the difference between phevision for income taxes from continuing opesai computed at the U.S. fed:
statutory income tax rate of 35% and that repditedinancial statement purposes:
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2007 T 2006 2006 2005
Statutory U.S. federal tax at 35% $26,77: $16,15( $27,26: $19,72¢
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit 1,95¢ 87¢€ 5,012 1,21¢
Foreign rate differential (39) 142 157 181

Tax exempt interest income (2,669 (1,529 (1,20%  (1,70))



Valuation allowance 61C 11 292 (1,002

Unrecognized tax benefi (2,177) — — —
Other (121) (1,126 (63E) 15¢
Provision for income taxes $24,337 $14,52¢ $30,88: $18,58:

The tax effects of temporary differences that giiee to significant portions of the deferred taxsets and deferred tax liabilities
continuing operations consisted of the following:

December 31  December 31 April 30,

2007 2006 2006
Deferred tax assets:

Accounts receivable $ 501 $ 764 $ 1,36:
Inventories 2,78¢ 2,17¢ 1,367
Prepaid royalties 3,62: 4,27( 3,92¢
Stock options/stock compensation 2,91¢ 2,50¢ 737
Credits and net operating loss carryforwards — — 2,46t
Investments 2,202 2,84t 3,97(
Intangible assets 9,061 3,262 3,171
Accrued liabilities and reserves 217 — 73C
Indirect income tax benefit 4,36¢ — —
Deferred tax assets, gross 25,671 15,82( 17,731
Valuation allowance (1,627) (1,799 (1,789
Deferred tax assets, net 24,04¢ 14,021 15,94
Deferred tax liabilities:

Fixed assets and depreciation (4,329) (5,037) (5,011
Accrued liabilities and reserves — (279 —
Total deferred tax assets, net $ 19,72¢ $ 8,71t $10,93:

The temporary differences described above repratifatences between the tax basis of assets bitifies and amounts reported in
consolidated financial statements that will resnltaxable or deductible amounts in future yearemvthe reported amounts of the asse
liabilities are recovered or settled. As of Decenig 2007, December 31, 2006, April 30, 2006 apdl/B0, 2005, $5,571, $4,871, $5,467
$5,815, respectively, of the net deferred tax asaet included in prepaid expenses and other duaissets and the remaining $14,155, $3
$5,465 and $3,617, respectively, are includedliwiohon-current assets in our consolidated balaheets.

As of December 31, 2007, December 31, 2006, ArjilZD06, and April 30, 2005 we had valuation alloees of $1,622, $1,799, $1,
and $1,496, respectively, to reduce our deferredatsets to an amount more likely than not to lmewered. The valuation allowance
primarily related to the deferred tax asset ari$ingn losses on investments which are capital tangafor which realization is uncertain. Th
capital loss carryforwards that remain at Decen®der2007 begin to expire in 2009.

F-16

WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag d

We are subject to periodic audits of our variousrgturns by government agencies which could raéaybiossible tax liabilities. Althoug
the outcome of these matters cannot currently kermiéned, we do not believe that amounts, if anlyictv may be required to be paid by ree
of such audits will have a material effect on dnafcial statements.

Unrecognized Tax benefits Tabular Reconciliation

Beginning Balanc- January 1, 200 $10,51
Additional Uncertain Tax Positior 1,94¢
Adjustment due to change in fas (985)
Reduction due to Expirations of Statute of Limiat (1,937)

Ending Balanc- December 31, 20C $ 9,541



U.S. income taxes have not been provided on uniesingarnings of our foreign subsidiaries, becawseirdent is to keep such earni
indefinitely reinvested in the foreign operatiorigh®e subsidiaries.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

We have certain commitments, including vasimoneancelable operating leases, performance contraitihs various performers a
employment agreements with certain executive affice

Future minimum payments as of December 31, 200@ntheé agreements described above were as follows:

Operating
Lease Other
Commitments  Commitments Total
For the year ending December 31, 2! $ 152¢ $ 12,78 $14,31:
For the year ending December 31, 2! 1,32¢ 6,622 7,94¢
For the year ending December 31, 2 1,13¢ 4,55t 5,691
For the year ending December 31, 2 751 3,34: 4,09/
For the year ending December 31, 2 54t 3,09z 3,63¢
Thereaftel 1,28 12,86¢ 14,15!
Total $ 657 $ 43,267 $49,83!

Rent expense under operating leases included itincéimg operations was approximately $2,609, $1,383460 and $2,231 for 20!
transition 2006, fiscal 2006, and 2005, respedfivel

Legal Proceeding:
World Wide Fund for Nature

In April 2000, the World Wide Fund for Natuaad its American affiliate, the World Wildlife Fdr{collectively, the “Fund”)nstituted lege
proceedings against us in the English High Cowekisgy injunctive relief and unspecified damagesdieged breaches of a 1994 agreel
between the Fund and us regarding the use of thalsn'wwif”. In August 2001, a High Court judge granted the Fanabtion for summa
judgment, holding that we breached the agreemenidiyg the initials“'wwf” in connection with certain of our website addressed ou
former scratch logo. The English Court of Appeddseguently upheld that ruling. As a result we atgiect to an injunction barring us, eit
directly or indirectly, from most uses of the ial§ “wwf.”

As part of its original complaint, the Fund incladg damages claim. On October 29, 2004, the Fledi di claim for damages in the Eng
High Court seeking actual damages for legal an@rotiosts of approximately $575, which we have pgtedifor, and substantial monet
claims in an amount calculated as a royalty basedestain percentages of our profits over the medianuary 1997 through November 2!
We filed an application to determine as a prelimjriasue the propriety of the Fusdbasis upon which damages were claimed. The @aled
that the Fund is entitled in point of law to seektitutionary damages, but that the question whetieFund was entitled in point of faci
claim or recover damages on that basis remainedterdined. We appealed this decision, and by addrjudgment dated April 2, 2007,
English Court of Appeals reversed the High Couring that the Fund is not entitled in point of lavseek restitutionary damages agains
On May 1, 2007, the Fund filed a petition to theus® of Lords for leave to appeal the judgment ef@ourt of Appeals, which the Hous¢
Lords refused.

F-17

WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per sl d

We strongly believe that the Fund has never suffemgy loss or damage, and would vigorously defegalrnst any damages claim if
Fund were to attempt to assert such a claim undifexent theory. Based upon the decisions ofGoert of Appeals and House of Lords,
do not believe this matter will have any materlerse effect on our financial condition, resulteperations or liquidity.

Shenker & Associates; THQ/Jak



On November 14, 2000, Stanley Shenker & Aigdes, Inc. (“SSAI")filed a complaint against us in the Superior CairConnecticu
relating to the termination of an agency agreerbeiwveen SSAI and us. In October 2003, as a regslgnificant litigation misconduct by t
plaintiff and its principal, Stanley Shenker (“Skeri’), the court issued a comprehensive opinion @mietr, dismissing plaintif§ case agair
us with prejudice and entering a default judgmenbur favor on all of our counterclaims for tortioointerference with business relatic
conversion, fraud and conspiracy.

We also filed a complaint against James B@&EIll"), one of our former officers, and certain entitietated to him, with respect
irregularities in the licensing program, which catodight through discovery in the SSAI litigatioBn February 10, 2005, Bell pleaded gt
in the U.S. District Court for the District of Coecticut to mail fraud as a result of kickbacks Be#s paid by Shenker based on roya
received from certain WWE licensing agreements.Ja@muary 12, 2007, Shenker pleaded guilty in the Dis$rict Court for the District
Connecticut to conspiracy to commit interstate dpanmtation of money obtained by fraud and wire drly, among other things, depriving u:
honest services through Shenker's and Bedlécret arrangement to split between themselwstyocommission monies paid by W\
licensees. On May 1, 2007, Shenker and Bell wenteseed to thirtythree and eight months, respectively, in prisoa assult of their crimini
conduct directed against us.

On October 19, 2004, as a result of informationoweced in connection with the SSAI matter, we filedaction in the U.S. District Co
for the Southern District of New York against Jalacific, Inc. (“Jakks”), two foreign subsidiarie$ Jakks, THQ Inc. (THQ");THQ/Jakk:
Pacific LLC (“THQ/Jakks”),SSAI and Bell Licensing, LLC. The suit also namsdafendants certain senior executives of Jakksni&r an
Bell. We filed an amended complaint on March 310200ur lawsuit alleged violations of the Racketediuenced and Corrupt Organizat
Act (RICO) and the Sherman Act, and various claimder state law. We sought treble, punitive anemottamages and a declaration tha
existing videogame license with THQ/Jakks and ateel amendment to the toy licenses with Jakks aig and unenforceable. In an or
dated March 31, 2006, the Court: (1) denied themt#dnts'motions to dismiss the RICO claim based on thetiemmise argument; (2) gran
the defendants’ motions to dismiss the RobinsomBRatAct claim; and (3) granted the defendantstions to dismiss the Sherman Act clz
In response to additional motions to dismiss, thericentered an order dated December 21, 2007 jsiBrg our RICO claim because the ¢
found it failed to allege a cognizable RICO injuagd it was timedarred, and dismissing the lawsuit because there ne remaining fedet
claims. On December 28, 2007, we timely filed daeobf appeal with the U.S. Court of Appeals fag Becond Circuit. As part of its ruling,
court also found that a release and covenant mie¢@sserted by Jakks as a complete bar to aonsatep not apply to the claims at issue. J
has crossppealed that ruling and filed a motion for recdesation with the district court, which we have oped. In addition, all defenda
have cross-appealed the court’s ruling on their@Edterprise argument.

On October 13, 2006, we filed a complaint in th@&ior Court of the State of Connecticut againsQrahd THQ/Jakks arising out of -
improper sublicense of rights to certain W\WEanded videogames in violation of the applicabtle@game license agreement. The comg
alleged claims for, among other things, breachasftract, unjust enrichment, violation of the Cortieett Unfair Trade Practices Act an
declaration that we are entitled to terminate tide@game license agreement with THQ/Jakks. On Mag;l2007, we filed a motion to cite
and to amend complaint in order to add new claigeirest the existing defendants, THQ and THQ/Jalksl, new defendants, Jakks, cel
officers of Jakks, Stanley Shenker and Associdtes, and Shenker. The new claims relate to therd&fnts’conduct in connection with t
corruption of WWES agents, Shenker and Bell, and collusion to seitiw@VWE videogame license for THQ/Jakks. In DeocemnitD07, w
amended our complaint to assert additional claietating to the defendantsorruption of Shenker and Bell to secure certain ltcensing
rights.

IPO Class Actior

In December 2001, a purported class action complaas filed against us asserting claims for allegiedations of the federal securit
laws relating to our initial public offering in 199Also named as defendants in this suit were \finke McMahon, Linda E. McMahon a
August J. Liguori, a former Chief Financial Offid@ollectively, the “Individual Defendantsgnd the underwriters of our initial public offeri
According to the allegations of the Complaint, thmelerwriter defendants allegedly engaged in maatjue practices by, among other thir
pre-selling allotments of shares of our stock itume for undisclosed, excessive commissions froemghrchasers and/or entering into after-
market tie-in arrangements which allegedly art#ilyi inflated the Company’s stock price.
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In December 2006, the Court of Appeals for the dddircuit ruled that the certification of this peeding as a class action was invalid
remanded the case to the Southern District of Nenk Y*SDNY™). The class plaintiffs requested the Second Cirauietonsider, which w
denied. We are unable to predict whether the pttEnwill be successful in amending their claimsdncordance with the Second Circsiit’
ruling.

Other Matters



In July 2007, we received letters from the U.S. stoof Representatives Committee on Oversight ance@ment Reform and the U
House of Representatives Subcommittee on Commereee, and Consumer Protection, requesting cemémmation relating to our drt
testing policies. We have responded accordingly.

We are not currently a party to any other matdeghl proceedings. However, we are involved in sdvether suits and claims in 1
ordinary course of business, the outcome of whicimat expected to have a material adverse effeausnfinancial condition, results
operations or liquidity. We may from time to timedmme a party to other legal proceedings.

12. Stockholders’ Equity

Our Class B common stock is fully convertible i@tass A common stock, on a one for one basis, yatiare at the option of the hold
The two classes are entitled to equal per shaideatids and distributions and vote together as gschdth each share of Class B entitled tc
votes and each share of Class A entitled to one, exicept when separate class voting is requirezpblicable law. If, at any time, any she
of Class B common stock are beneficially owned by person other than Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahany descendant of either
them, any entity which is wholly owned and is cotled by any combination of such persons or angtjrall the beneficiaries of which are :
combination of such persons, each of those shaiesuwtomatically convert into shares of Class Argoon stock. Through his benefic
ownership of a substantial majority of our Classd@nmon stock, our controlling stockholder, VincémtMahon, can effectively exerci
control over our affairs, and his interests cowddftict with the holders of our Class A common $toc

We paid four quarterly dividends of $0.24 per share$68,664, on all Class A and Class B commomeshin 2007. In February 2008
announced an increase in the quarterly dividendlioGilass A common shares to $0.36 per share fialtkin March 2008.

13. Share Based Compensation

The LTIP provides for grants of options arden forms of equitysased incentive awards as determined by the corapensommittee «
the Board of Directors as incentives and rewardsntmourage employees, directors, consultants aridrpeers to participate in our lortgfir
success. The LTIP provides for grants of optionpurchase shares at a price equal to the fair rhagtee on the date of grant. The opti
expire between 30 years after the date of grant and are genezallycisable in installments beginning one year ftbendate of the grant.
2004, we began issuing restricted stock units, ivgenerally vest annually.
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Current grants outstanding have vesting periodsdmmt three and seven years. As of December 31, th@0& were 4,038,690 shares avail
for future grants. It is our policy to issue nevasss to satisfy option exercises and the vestingsificted stock units.

Stock based compensation cost was $7,777, $4,84894 and $4,084 for 2007, transition 2006, fi2@06 and fiscal 2005, respectivi
The total recognized tax benefit was $2,955, $1&0878, and $1,353 for 2007, transition 2006 &li&006 and 2005, respectively.

SFAS 123(R) also amends SFAS No. Sfatement of Cash Flowsrequiring the benefits of tax deductions in esce$ recognize
compensation costs to be reported as financing ftashk, rather than as operating cash flows asipusly required. The tax benefits in exc
of recognized compensation cost for 2007 and tiians?006 were $841 and $712, repectively.

SFAS 123(R}¥ requirement to apply an estimated forfeiture tatenvested awards resulted in an increase iearatngs, and a cumulat
effect of accounting change, as we previously @edrforfeitures when they occurred. For transi?006, the cumulative effect of accoun:
change totaled $215 ($140 net of related tax gffaetl was recorded in selling, general and admatigse expense because its impact or
income and net income per share was not significant

Stock Options

The fair value of stock options was deterrdinsing the Blackscholes valuation model. Such value is recognizeéx@ense over t
service period, net of estimated forfeitures, ushrgstraight line method under SFAS 123(R). Weshast granted any stock options since .
2004. We granted 1,104,500 options in fiscal 200t per share weighted average fair value of sbptions granted in fiscal 2005 was $2.95.

The weighted average assumptions used in the eptioing model in fiscal 2005 was as follows:

2005



Expected life of optiol 3 year:

Risk-free interest rat 3.C%
Expected volatility of our common sto 33%
Expected dividend yiel 1.9%

We did not recognize stock compensation cost facksbptions prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R)May 1, 2006. See Note 2 for |
forma net income disclosures for fiscal 2006 an@i520

The following table summarizes option activity R007:

Weighted
Weighted
Average
Average Remaining Aggregate

Exercise Contractual
Intrinsic

Stock Options Shares Price Term Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,715,300 $13.1¢ 3.1 $ 5,61
Granted — — — —
Exercisec (469,819 $13.1¢ — —
Forfeited/Expirec (52,420 $12.3¢ — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,193,06: $13.1¢ 2.3 $ 2,29¢
Vested and Expected to Vest at December 31, 1,184,500 $ 13.1¢ 2.3 $ 2,28
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 1,086,083  $13.1¢ 24 $ 2,009

As of December 31, 2007, the total future compénsatost related to unvested options not yet reizeghwas $200 and the weigh
average period over which these awards are expéztied recognized was 0.5 years. We estimate forés, based on historical trends, w
recognizing compensation expense associated vaith siptions, and will adjust our estimate of faidieés when they are expected to differ.
2007, we estimated that 8% of option grants will fodfeited over the life of each grant. The intimvalue of options exercised v
approximately $2,038, $1,331, $4,609 and $213 &@72 transition 2006, fiscal 2006, and fiscal 20@Spectively.
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Cash received from option exercises undestalebased payment arrangements was $6,170, $3,67828L&nd $704 for 2007, transit
2006, fiscal 2006, and fiscal 2005, respectivelgx Benefits realized from tax deductions associatiélal stock option exercises totaled $7
$506, $1,751 and $81 for 2007, transition 200€ali2006, and fiscal 2005, respectively.

Restricted Stock Units

The fair value of restricted stock units is detereai based on the number of shares granted anditediprice of our common stock on
grant date. The fair value of restricted stock sumst recognized as expense over the service pearmietdpf estimated forfeitures, using
straightline method under SFAS 123(R). We estimate forfegubased on historical trends, when recognizimgpensation expense associ
with its restricted stock, and adjust the estinftdéorfeitures when they are expected to differr Bte year ended December 31 2007
estimate that 8% of restricted stock grants wilfdréeited over the life of each grau



We granted 190,750, 517,750, 611,000 and 133,%fiated stock units in 2007, transition 2006, dis2006 and fiscal 2005, respectiv:
with an aggregate gradite fair value of approximately, $3,063, $8,53869% and $1,727. During 2007, transition 2006,di€006 and 200
we recognized $4,931, $4,451, $4,694 and $4,08pertively, of compensation expense associated negtricted stock units, which w
classified as selling, general and administratixgease.

The following table summarizes the activity of reged stock units:

Weighted Average Grant

Restricted Stock Units Shares Date Fair Value
Unvested at December 31, 2C 1,087,13 $ 14.6(
Granted 190,75( $ 16.0¢
Vested (398,30 $16.2¢
Forfeited/Expirec (174,54) $15.22
Dividends 56,34« $ 15.61
Unvested at December 31, 2C _ 61,38 $ 15.0¢

The grant date fair value of restricted stock umésted was $6,476, $2,372, $4,475 and $6,455007 ,2ransition 2006 and fiscal 20
and fiscal 2005, respectively. Tax benefits realiffem tax deductions associated with RSU actitataled $2,461, $901, $1,701 and $68¢
2007, transition 2006, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 20@Spectively.

As of December 31, 2007 there was $4,765 of totakepgnized compensation cost related to unveststtiated stock units to
recognized over a weighted-average period of apmately 1.3 years. Based on the current restristeetk units outstanding, $3,44f
compensation expense will be recognized in 2008@ademaining $1,321 will be recognized from 2692011.

Performance Stock Units

In July 2007, the Company began issuing perémce stock units, (“PSUsI addition to RSUs. The concept behind grantint % tc
further align the interest of our employees withr ghareholders. The July 2007 issuance of apprdgignal75,000 PSUs is subject
performance goals established for the last twotgtmpf 2007. As these goals have been exceededijlingrant approximately 585,000 sha
which will vest in equal annual installments on fhist three anniversaries of their issuance datgal compensation cost related to the P
based on the estimated value of the units as oémber 31, 2007, net of estimated forfeitures, i943. The compensation expense is k
amortized over the service period, which is appraately three and one-half years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We provide a stock purchase plan for our eyges. Under the plan, any regular fithe employee may contribute up to 10% of theire
compensation (subject to certain income limits)hi® semiannual purchase of shares of our common stock.plihehase price is 85% of t
fair market value at certain platefined dates. SFAS 123(R) defines this plan aspemsatory, and accordingly, a charge is recordedhf
difference between the fair market value and tisealinted price. In 2007, two purchases occurredesulted in a $65 charge. 107 emplo
were participants in the stock purchase plan aedetemployees purchased approximately 41,176 sbhamg common stock at an aver
price of $13.82 per share.
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14. Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor a 401(k) defined contribution plan cmgesubstantially all employees. Under this plaartigipants are allowed to me
contributions based on a percentage of their ssagubject to a statutorily prescribed annualtlivie make matching contributions of
percent of each participast'contributions, up to 6% of eligible compensatiomximum 3% matching contribution). We may also 8
additional discretionary contributions to the 4QL(kan. Our expense for matching contributions additional discretionary contributions
the 401(k) plan was $1,010, $567, $835 and $76@&g@007, transition 2006, fiscal 2006 and fisd202, respectively.

15. Segment Information

During fiscal 2006, we expanded the number of eportable segments to four in order better to cefliee manner in which managerr



analyzes our performance including our digital raeblisinesses and the production of feature filme.HAve also reclassified certain o
operations between the reportable segments. All ggar segment information has been adjustedfiectéhe current presentation. The res
of operations forThe Worldand for the XFL are not included in the segmentoriépg as they are classified separately as diguoed
operations in our consolidated financial statemé®ée Note 18). We do not allocate corporate owethe each of the segments and as ar
corporate overhead is a reconciling item in théetdlelow. There are no intersegment revenues. Ttidtees of each segment are summar

in Note 1.

Revenues derived from sales outside of North Araewere approximately $119,298, $60,416, $97,686%8%594 for 2007, transiti
2006, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, respectively.

The table presents information about the finan@allts of each segment for 2007, transition 2€686al 2006, and fiscal 2005 and asse
of December 31, 2007, December 31, 2006 and ABril2B06. Unallocated assets consist primarily ahcahortterm investments and ri

property and other investments.

2007 T 2006 2006 2005
Net revenues
Live and Televised Entertainment $316,84: $182,99¢ $290,78: $299,50:
Consumer Products 118,08’ 59,18: 86,41( 53,86¢
Digital Media 34,77 20,75¢ 22,857 13,06¢
WWE Films 15,95¢ — — —
Total net revenues $485,65! $262,93 $400,05. $366,43:
Depreciation and amortizatio
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 362¢ $ 216¢ $ 3561 $ 3,90t
Consumer Products 1,38¢ 85¢ 2,02¢ 2,07¢
Digital Media 83€ 177 1,471 1,45(C
Corporate 3,47( 2,351 3,417 4,44(
Total depreciation and amortization $ 931¢ $ 5557 $ 1047 $ 11,87
Operating income
Live and Televised Entertainment $100,16: $ 57,00 $ 93,98 $100,61:
Consumer Products 68,64 26,85¢ 46,41 26,79¢
Digital Media 6,29: 3,79¢ 2,93: 1,29(
WWE Films (14,749 (1,110 (1,289 (2,005
Corporate (91,92() (47,299 (71,510 (77,400
Total operating income $ 68,431 $ 39,241 $ 7054( $ 50,29¢
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As of:
December 31, 20C  December 31, 20C  April 30, 200€
Assets:
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 94,87 $ 77,08: $ 88,89¢
Consumer Products 15,18¢ 14,98: 16,85:
Digital Media 9,74 6,12¢ 3,38(
WWE Films 45,24: 56,29¢ 39,01(
Unallocated (1) 305,01( 298,79 331,24¢
Total assets $ 470,05¢ $ 453,28 $ 479,39(

(1) Includes assets of discontinued operations of $$889, and $457 as of December 31, 2007, Decenh&@086, and April 30, 20C

respectively



16. Financial Instruments and OftBalance Sheet Risl

Concentration of Credit Risk— Financial instruments which potentially subjecttasconcentrations of credit risk are principallynk
deposits, shorterm investments and accounts receivable. Caslt@stuequivalents are deposited with high creditityu@nancial institutions
Shortterm investments primarily consist of AAA or AA eat instruments or mutual funds holding similar riastents. Except for receivab
from cable companies related to pay-pmw events and our home video distributor, conegions of credit risk with respect to tre
receivables are limited due to the large numberustomers. A significant portion of trade receieablor pay-periew events is received frc
our pay-perview administrator, who collects and remits payreetd us from individual cable system operators. Péeform ongoin
evaluations of our customers’ financial conditimgluding our pay-periew administrator, and we monitor our exposuredi@dit losses al
maintain allowances for anticipated losses.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments— The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents,emnomarket accounts, accounts receivable
accounts payable approximate fair value becauslkeeo$hort-term nature of such instruments. Ourtdeom investments are carried at quu
market values. Our debt consists of the mortgalgeee to our corporate headquarters, which hasiana interest rate of 7.6%. The fair ve
of this debt is not significantly different fronsitarrying amount.

17. Quarterly Financial Summaries (unaudited)

1StQuarter 2" Quarter 3" Quarter* 4™ Quarter

2007
Net revenue $107,39. $137,51. $ 108,11( $ 132,64
Cost of revenue $ 58,097 $100,52: $ 63,43t $ 76,71
Net income $ 15,13¢ $ 7,046 $ 8,44¢ $ 21,50:
Earnings per common share: be
Net income $ 021 $ 01C $ 01z $ 0.3C
Earnings per common share: dilu
Net income $ 021 $ 01C $ 01z $ 0.3«
T 2006
Net revenue $ 93,267 $ 96,23t $ 73,43 NA
Cost of revenue $ 53,26¢ $ 57,88. $ 45,94¢ NA
Net income $ 11,30 $ 10,39¢ $  9,91¢ NA
Earnings per common share: be
Net income $ 01€ $ 0.1 $ 0.14 NA
Earnings per common share: dilu NA
Net income $ 01€¢ $ 0.1 $ 0.1 NA
2006
Net revenue $ 93,81: $ 88,931 $ 103,04: $114,26:
Cost of revenue $ 52,500 $ 47,30¢ $ 56,18t $ 71,17¢
Income from continuing operatiol $ 11,17¢ $ 11,67¢ $ 13,59¢ $ 10,56¢
Income from discontinued operatic $ 2 3 26 $ 6 $ 1
Net income $ 11,18 $ 11,70: $ 13,59¢ $ 10,56¢
Earnings per common share: be
Net income $ 01l¢ $ 017 $ 02C $ 0.1t
Earnings per common share: dilu
Net income $ 01€¢ $ 017 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1t

* The third quarter in T 2006 consists of only twomonths
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18. Discontinued Operations
The World and XFL

The results o0The Worldbusiness, which have been classified as discortioperations in the consolidated financial statemeare $1



and $1,369 in April 30, 2006 and 2005, respectivielgome on the shutdown of the XFL in fiscal 20@#s $24, net of taxes of $17.
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Additions
Balance a  Charged to Balance a
Beginning Costs and End of
Description of Period Expenses  Deductions (1 Period

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 2,08 % 47 % (773 $ 1,35¢

Inventory obsolescence reserve 4,891 1,03 (34¢) 6,27¢

Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 4,07¢ 23,47: (22,740 4,80¢

Home video allowance for returns 8,51( 17,66¢ (29,559 6,662
For the Transition Period Ended December 31, 2006

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 3,74C $ (1,579 $ (82) $ 2,084

Inventory obsolescence reserve 3,63t 1,42¢ (73) 4,891

Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 4,517 14,95 (15,390 4,07¢

Home video allowance for returns 3,811 14,25 (9,55¢) 8,51(

Advertising underdelivery 36E — (365) —
For the Year Ended April 30, 2006

Allowance for doubtful accounts $3281 $§ 494 $ (41) $ 3,74C

Inventory obsolescence reserve 2,062 1,894 (421) 3,53¢

Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 4,60z 20,55! (20,464 4,512

Home video allowance for returns 2,92( 10,19¢ (9,307) 3,81

Advertising underdelivery 2,62t 1,59¢ (3,859 36&
For the Year Ended April 30, 2005

Allowance for doubtful accounts $2612 $ 675 $ — $ 3,28

Inventory obsolescence reserve 1,12¢ 1,54¢ (613) 2,062

Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 4,517 24,50: (24,419 4,60z

Home video allowance for returns 2,58¢ 9,64¢ (9,319) 2,92(

Advertising underdelivery 4,401 6,14¢ (7,92)) 2,62¢

(1) Deductions are comprised primarily of disposalslugolete inventory, write-offs of specific bad dglyeturns and advertising “make-
goods” for underdelivery. When we do not delivex uaranteed rating, additional spots, commonkrrefl to as ‘make-goodst a
times, a cash refund, is given to the custol
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SUBSIDIARIES OF WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

(All subsidiaries are wholly-owned, directly or ingttly)
TSI Realty Company (a Delaware corporation)
World Wrestling Entertainment Canada, Inc. (a Céaradorporation)
Stephanie Music Publishing, Inc. (a Connecticupooation)
The World Entertainment, LLC (a Delaware limiteahlility company)*
World Wrestling Entertainment (International) Lieit (a UK corporation)
WWE Sports, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
Event Services, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WWE Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- WWE Films Development, Inc. (a Delaware corpanali
- WWE Films Development Funding (LA), LLC (a Lowasia limited liability company)
- WWE Films Production (LA), LLC (a Louisiana linei liability company)
- Marine Productions (a California corporation)
- Marine Productions Australia Pty Limited (an Auadia corporation)
- Eye Scream Productions (a California corporation)
- Eye Scream Man Productions Australia Pty Limif@d Australia corporation)
- Condemned Productions, Inc. (a California corpord

- Condemned Productions Australia Pty Ltd (an Aal&trcorporation)
WWE Animation, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)*
- WWE Animation Development, Inc. (a Delawatgporation)*
WWE Libraries, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WCW, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WWE Properties International, Inc. (a Delaware ooation)
WWE Australia Pty Limited (an Australia limited bdity company)

WWE Japan LLC (a Japanese limited liability company

*Not in operation
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statements Nos. 333-92041 and 333-9237Bam S-8 and No. 3332536 ol
Form S3 of our reports dated March 5, 2008, relating lte financial statements and financial statemenedule of World Wrestlin
Entertainment, Inc., and the effectiveness of Wakcestling Entertainment, Ins.’internal control over financial reporting appegrin this
Annual Report on Form 10-K of World Wrestling Etggnment, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2007

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Stamford, Connecticut

March 5, 2008




Exhibit 31.:
Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to@e802 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002:
I, Vincent K. McMahon, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omigtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgta under which such statements were made, nteadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officers and | are responsitibe éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanisl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurég tbesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this report is being prepal

b) Designed such internal control over financiglanting, or caused such internal control ofieancial reporting to be desigr
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amssaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntéd report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially ciéfé, or is reasonably likely to materially affetiie registrans internal control ovi
financial reporting; an

5. The registrar's other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internal robraver financie

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacommittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing the\eden!
function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalv@anagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarst’
internal controls over financial reportir

Dated: March 5, 2008 By: /s/ Vincent K. McMahon

Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Boar

(co-principal executive officer)




Exhibit 31.2
Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to@e802 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002:
I, Linda E. McMahon, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omigtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgta under which such statements were made, nteadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officers and | are responsitibe éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanisl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this report is being prepal

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtéds report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegg’s internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially ciéfé, or is reasonably likely to materially affetiie registrans internal control ovi
financial reporting; an

5. The registrar's other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internal robraver financie

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacommittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing the\eden!
function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controérofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invawmanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrargt’
internal controls over financial reportir

Dated: March 5, 2008 By: /s/ Linda E. McMahon

Linda E. McMahon
Chief Executive Office

(co-principal executive officer)




Exhibit 31.:
Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to@e802 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002:
I, Frank G. Serpe, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omigtade a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgta under which such statements were made, nteadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officers and | are responsitibe éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanisl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repogtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurée tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durithg fperiod in which this report is being prepal

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principle

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtéds report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegg’s internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially ciéfé, or is reasonably likely to materially affetiie registrans internal control ovi
financial reporting; an

5. The registrar's other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internal robraver financie

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacommittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing the\eden!
function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controérofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invawmanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrargt’
internal controls over financial reportir

Dated: March 5, 2008 By: /s/ Frank G. Serpe

Frank G. Serpe
Chief Financial Officel

(principal financial officer)




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chairman, CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant tadBe2d6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fRAorld Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (the “Compé&hnjor the period ended December
2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cision on the date hereof (the “Repor¥)ncent K. McMahon as Chairman of the Bc
and co-principal executive officer of the Compahinda E. McMahon as Chief Executive Officer andmaicipal executive officer of tt
Company, and Frank G. Serpe as Chief Financiak@ffand principal financial officer, each herebytifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sect
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of hiker knowledge:

(1) The report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934 as amended; a

(2) The information contained in the report fairly prets, in all material aspects, the financial caodieind results of operations of t
Company.

By: /s/ Vincent K. McMahon

Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board
(cc-principal executive officer

March 5, 2008

By: /s/ Linda E. McMahon

Linda E. McMahon
Chief Executive Officer
(cc-principal executive officer

March 5, 2008

By: /s/ Frank G. Serpe

Frank G. Serpe
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer’

March 5, 2008




